2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

including the Annual Financial Report

I

| iial. EURUE XT
590,04




CONTENTS

PRESENTATION OF THE COMPANY

RISKS

2018 Risk Focus
Strategic Risks
Financial Risks

Operational Risks

PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP

1.1 Company Profile

1.2 Strategy: “Agility for Growth” Strategic Plan
1.3 Description of the Business

1.4 Regulation

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

2.1 Dutch Corporate Governance Code,
“Comply or Explain”

2.2 Management & Control Structure
2.3 Report of the Supervisory Board
2.4 Remuneration Report

2.5 Euronext ESG policy

SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS SHARE CAPITAL

4.1 Legal Information on the Company

4.2 Share Capital

4.3 Shareholder Structure

4.4 Share Classes and Major Shareholders

4.5 General Meeting of Shareholders and Voting
Rights

4.6 Anti-Takeover Provisions

4.7 Obligations of Shareholders and Members
of the Managing Board to Disclose Holdings

10
10

15
16
19
22
41

47

48
49
64
67
72

95

101
102
102
104
104

107
108

108

3|

2

=l 3l

3|

3|

3|

4.8 Short Positions

4.9 Market Abuse Regime

4.10 Transparency Directive

4.11 Dutch Financial Reporting Supervision Act
4.12 Dividends and Other Distributions

4.13 2019 Financial Calendar

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

5.1 Overview

5.2 Material contracts and related
party transactions

5.3 Legal Proceedings

5.4 Insurance

5.5 Liquidity and Capital Resources
5.6 Tangible Fixed Assets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.1 Consolidated Income Statement

6.2 Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

6.3 Consolidated Balance Sheet

6.4 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

6.5 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
6.6 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.7 Company Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018

6.8 Notes to the Company Financial Statements

OTHER INFORMATION

7.1 Profit Appropriation Section
7.2 Independent Auditor’'s Report

@ GLOSSARY

109
109
110
110
11
1M1

113
114

134
136
137
138
140

143
144

145
146
147
148
149

211
213

229
230
230

237

[E: Items in the Directors’ Report within the meaning of Article 2:391 of the Dutch Civil Code are identified in the contents using the DR symbol

3|



2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

including the Annual Financial Report

Euronext N.V. (the “Company” or “Euronext” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a Dutch public company with limited liability
(naamloze vennootschap), whose ordinary shares are admitted to listing and trading on regulated markets in the Netherlands, France,
Belgium and Portugal. The applicable regulations with respect to public information and protection of investors, as well as the commitments
made by the Company to securities and market authorities, are described in this Registration Document (the “Registration Document”).

In addition to historical information, this Registration Document includes forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements
are generally identified by the use of forward-looking words, such as “anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “plan”, “project”,
“predict”, “will”, “should”, “may” or other variations of such terms, or by discussion of strategy. These statements relate to Euronext’s future
prospects, developments and business strategies and are based on analyses or forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet
determinable. These forward-looking statements represent the view of Euronext only as of the dates they are made, and Euronext disclaims
any obligation to update forward-looking statements, except as may be otherwise required by law. The forward-looking statements in this
Registration Document involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause Euronext’'s actual future results,
performance and achievements to differ materially from those forecasted or suggested herein. These include changes in general economic
and business conditions, as well as the factors described under “Risk Factors” below.

This Registration Document was prepared in accordance with Annex 1 of EC Regulation 809/2004, filed in English with, and approved by,
the Stichting Autoriteit Financiéle Markten (the “AFM”) on 3 April 2019 in its capacity as competent authority under the Wet op het financieel
toezicht (as amended) pursuant to Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, including by Directive 2010/73/EU). This Registration Document
may be used in support of an offering to the public, or an admission to trading, of securities of the Company as a document forming part
of a prospectus in accordance with Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, including by Directive 2010/73/EU) only if it is supplemented by a
securities note and a summary approved by the AFM.
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ACHIEVEMENT

ONE YEAR IN ADVANCE
OF MOST OF THE 2019 TARGETS

,‘.. EURONEXT

61.6% ;
EBITDA margin ~€340m ~ 90%
Deliver value For core business and selected capital deployed since 2016 dividend pay out
to shareholders growth initiatives " of which ~€100m for bolt-ons with a floor at €1.42/share
|
. 61-63% target Is. 50% target
€23.8m Optiq® live
achieved €14.6m for Euronext cash markets and
Enhance Agilit Gross cost savings Restructuring costs market data
giuty
|
Is. €27m target Is. €33m expected
Strengthen >65% >50%
resilience of +2.0% Average market share on Average market share on French
the core business = CAGRyys.;s core business growth cash trading since 2017 equity options
]
Vs +2.0% CAGR 5.1 target Vs >60% target Vs >50% target

€17.6m

incremental revenue
generated in 2018

Grow in selected
segments

Good progress on Corporate
Services, traction on Tech SMEs
initiative,

ETF MTF to be live in 2019

Clearing optionality for cash
equities with LCH SA and EuroCCP
Renewed 10-year contract
with LCH SA for derivatives

s. €55m target in 2019

In 2018, Euronext has extended its scope of activity both organically and through acquisitions. Furthermore, most of the core business 2019
targets of the Agility for Growth plan have been achieved one year in advance. To simplify and improve the tracking of its performance,
Euronext will now report only group performance (including selected growth initiatives and new perimeter).

1" Scope used for the 61-63% EBITDA margin 2019 target of Agility for Growth strategic plan (see press release published on 13 May 2016 available on www.euronext.com). Including IFRS 15 impact
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INTRODUCING OPTIQ", THE NEW
GENERATION TRADING PLATFORM

Euronext has launched Optiq”, its new state-of-the-art, proprietary trading platform, already powering market data
and all Euronext cash markets, and to be deployed for Euronext derivatives market in 2019.

PREMIUM LEVEL
@ PERFORMANCE
Leverage state-of-the-art technology

to ensure reliability, enhanced throughput
and predictable latency.

e

INCREASED STABILITY /

Enhanced efficiency and performance '*\
through improved connectivity and protocols,
and optimised messaging model.

FLEXIBILITY

Provide customers with a simplified and flexible
system allowing shorter time-to-market to deliver
new initiatives and implement customers’ requests.

WHO BENEFITS FROM OPTIQ"?

Technology providers offering

Trading Members on Euronext
Cash and Derivatives markets

Optimised order entry protocols, higher
throughput through new connectivity models
and more transparency.

OPTIQ" IN NUMBERS

software and access
to Euronext markets
]

One single way to access Euronext markets,
flexibility in developments for new Euronext
services depending on customers’ needs.

Data vendors consuming
Euronext Market data
|

Harmonised and faster market data across
Cash and Derivatives markets.

Migration of Cash markets to Optiq® in June 2018. Optiq® live in Dublin in February 2019.

LATENCY

DEPLOYMENT

45..

vs. 96 hours
on UTP

CAPACITY

50%

Hardware
footprint
reduction

CAPACITY

Unlimited

scalability
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EURONEXT
FEDERAL MODEL

I Euronext historical presence
[T Euronext recent Tech hub expansion

@ 6 Regulated markets
‘ Technology centers
@ Sales offices

' Euronext London is recognised as a Recognised Investment
Exchange (RIF) by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA).

Euronext is the first pan-European exchange,
spanning Belgium, France, Ireland,

the Netherlands, Portugal and the UK.

This unique model unites marketplaces that date
back as far as the start of the 17th century, and is
designed to incorporate the individual strengths
and assets of each market, combining heritage
and forward-looking modernity.

We operate five national regulated securities and
derivatives markets in Amsterdam, Brussels, Dublin,
Lishon and Paris, and the UK-based regulated
securities market, Euronext London.

SOURCE OF 2018
REVENUE

34,3%
5.9% Cash trading
Market Solutions
& Other revenue

19,2%
Market Data
& Indices M8 7,1%
| Derivatives
trading
\ 0,
Custody 3,5%
& Settlement FX Spot

9,0%
Clearing

17,3%
Listing

4 ‘ EURONEXT 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
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+19.5%

REVENUE
IN €M

www.euronext.com



A STRONG

PERFORMANCE IN 2018

€354.3m
57.6%

EBITDA MARGIN

€3.44
+11.2%

ADJUSTED EPS

€3.4trn

MARKET CAPITALISATION
ON EURONEXT MARKETS

66.1%

MARKET SHARE
ON CASH TRADING

COUNTRIES

aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa

63%

EBITDA TO CASH FLOW

1,300

ISSUERS

€8.1bn

CASH AVERAGE
DAILY VALUE

EMPLOYEES

IN 2019, EURONEXT
EXPECTS TO LIMIT
THE GROWTH RATE OF
ITS OPERATING COSTS
ToALOW SINGLE
DIGIT, DESPITE

THE CONSOLIDATION
OF EURONEXT DUBLIN
FOR THE FULL YEAR

OF 2019
e

NEW EQUITY LISTINGS

0.51bps

CASHYIELD

€340m

CAPITAL DEPLOYED SINCE 2016
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The format of Euronext’s Registration Document and the
presentation of its Table of Content respect the requirements of
Annex 1 of the Prospectus Directive EC 809/2004 as applicable
in the Netherlands. Euronext as a leading financing centre
in continental Europe is subject to risks and uncertainties
that may affect its financial performance. Key risks specific
to a pan-European exchange operator relate to the general
economic development globally and especially in Europe, as
well as increased regulation, oversight and taxation, all of which
depend on policy decisions by governments and regulators and
which are not controlled by the Company. As for any company,
the business, results of operation or financial condition of the
Company could be materially adversely affected by the risks
described below. These are not the only risks the Company
faces. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known
to the Company or that it currently considers immaterial may
also impair its business and operations. A description of the
risk management system, including risk appetite, is provided
in Section “Risk management” (paragraph 2.2.1.1.).

RISKS

2018 Risk Focus 8
Strategic Risks 8
Financial Risks 10
Operational Risks 10
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RISKS

2018 Risk Focus

Current risks on which Euronext focused on over the course of 2018
and will continue to focus on in 2019 include:

m regulatory Compliance and Change: Regulatory change affects
the operations of the Group and of our stakeholders. Embedding
MIFID I, GDPR amongst other local policies requires monitoring of
the compliance risk as well as the evolution of the environment;

m competition: the evolution of the competitive landscape, especially
in a Brexit context, may alter Euronext’s market share;

Strategic Risks

m transformation: the strategy to acquire and continue our
acquisitions increases opportunities as well as transformation
risk;

m security: security of information is a key risk of the industry and
in the global landscape;

m technology: resilience and stability of systems given the
transformation to Optiq is closely monitored.

GLOBAL AND REGIONAL ECONOMY

The Company’s operations and performance depend on market
and economic conditions globally and locally. Trends towards
the liberalisation and globalisation of world capital markets
have resulted in greater mobility of capital, greater international
participation in local markets and more competition among markets
in different geographical areas. As a result, global competition
among trading markets and other execution venues has become
more intense. Given the global economy’s health and growth in highly
correlated to Euronext's revenue growth and related opportunities,
a weak economy and negative economic developments may impact
growth targets and could limit the Group's future prospects.

In addition, Euronext’s operations are highly concentrated in Belgium,
France, Ireland, the Netherlands, Portugal and the United Kingdom.
Euronext success is also highly correlated to general economic
developments in those countries and in Europe generally. The
relatively low growth prospect of the Euro area compared to other
areas may be a competitive disadvantage for Euronext versus its
non-European peers, impacting revenue and growth opportunities.

Euronext considers international institutions’ economic outlooks to
assess the level of this risk. With a consensus of about 3.6% global
real GDP growth, and +1.8% in the Euro area for 2019 at the date
of publication of this document, the risk of an adverse impact of
global and regional economy trends is very low but not insignificant.
2019 growth projections have been reviewed downward by both
the IMF and the OECD during Q4 2018 as they consider that risks
threatening global economy are becoming more pronounced or
have partially materialized in 2018. Amongst those, the ongoing
trade tension between the United States and China, the expected
tightening of monetary policies in developed countries and, more
locally, the doubts regarding political agenda in Europe (UK, Italy,
Turkey) could have an impact on global or regional economy and
ultimately impact Euronext, through reduced volumes or reduced
listing activity as well as opportunities for growth.

‘ EURONEXT 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Economic conditions affect financial and securities markets in
a number of ways, from determining availability of capital to
influencing investor confidence. Accordingly, generally adverse
market conditions may have a disproportionate and adverse effect
on the Company’s business and impact its financial results

COMPETITION

Euronext’s industry is highly and increasingly competitive.

In the listing segment, Euronext is facing competition from other
exchanges developing initiatives to capture primary listing of issuers
based on Euronext's home markets — and reciprocally Euronext
competes with peers on their home markets - in particular in respect
of global companies and SMEs in the technology sector as well as in
the corporate services market, where Euronext provides support to
newly listed and existing companies. In addition to these incumbent
competitors, existing, such as private equity, and emerging, such as
Initial Coin Offerings (ICO), alternative funding solutions may increase
competitive pressure on Euronext listing activity in the future.

Concerning the trading activity, fragmentation of markets and
increased competition have been driven by regulatory evolutions
and globalization. The pressure on market share and pricing that
was triggered by MiFID | has been absorbed and stabilized, but MiFID
Il opened the way for new form of competition, specific examples
being systematic internalisers and trading models. The Company's
current and prospective competitors are numerous and include both
traditional and non-traditional trading venues: multilateral trading
facilities (“"MTFs”) and a wide range of over-the-counter (“OTC")
services provided by market makers, banks, brokers and other
financial market participants amongst whom some are allowed to
offer better pricing than exchanges. Some of these competitors are
among Euronext’s largest customers or are owned by its customers.
Furthermore, Brexit outcome may act as a catalyst if UK based venue
decide to develop activities in the European Union.

www.euronext.com



In addition, Articles 35 to 37 of MiFIR introduced open access clauses
which, according to ESMA, may promote greater competition among
market infrastructures. In particular, Article 37 on Open Access
to benchmarks may be a threat on Euronext’'s index derivative
products, while Article 35 and 36 are contributing to reshape the
clearing landscape and require Euronext to adapt its post-trade
strategy and offer accordingly.

The success of the Group’s business depends on its ability to attract
and maintain order flow, both in absolute terms and relative to other
market centres. If Euronext fails to compete successfully, the loss of
order flow would deteriorate liquidity and market quality, and may
endanger Euronext’s attractivity and impact its financial results.

TRANSFORMATION

The Company is exposed to transformation risks (risk of loss or
failure resulting from change/transformation) given the current
levels of change and alignment activity taking place across the
Company. The Company has embarked on a new enhanced multi-
market trading platform, Optiq’, bringing leading technology to
ensure high reliability and improved latency. This technology has
change impacts to Euronext Market Services and Technology teams
given the innovation undertaken. Optiq Market Data Gateway was
launched in 2017, and the core trading technology for the regulated
markets was launched in 2018 for the cash trading segment. The
implementation of the derivatives segment is planned for 2019.
Euronext is undergoing some companywide transforming programs
in addition to its technological transformation, such as the integration
of new acquisitions, including Euronext Dublin. If these programs are
not completed, or do not operate as intended, identified synergies
may not be delivered and the marketplace may be questioned.

The Company has entered and may continue to enter into business
combination transactions. The market for acquisition targets
and strategic alliances is highly competitive. Pursuing strategic
transactions requires substantial time and attention of the
management team, which could prevent them from successfully
overseeing other initiatives. Similarly, if acquisitions ambitions are
publicly disclosed, such as of the Oslo Bgrs VPS, but not closed, this
may impact our reputation and our strategic growth plan. Completing
and recognising benefits of potential transactions takes time and can
impact the Company’s business, and financial results.

Euronext continues to explore and pursue opportunities to
strengthen its business and grow the Company. In relation to the
expansion of the Group's business, Euronext plans to invest time in
developing new products, improving current product offerings or
increase its presence in other markets. If these product offerings are
not successful, a potential market opportunity may be missed and
Euronext may not be able to offset the cost of such initiatives, which
may have a material impact on the Company’s financial results.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE AND CHANGE

Euronext's business in Europe is subject to extensive regulation at the
European level and by national regulators in the relevant European
jurisdictions where the Group has operations, including, Belgium,
France, Ireland, the Netherlands, Portugal and the United Kingdom.

RISKS

In addition, the Company has a presence in the United States,
including FastMatch and an ATS. As the Group seeks to expand its
product base or the jurisdictions in which it operates, it could become
subject to oversight by additional regulatory bodies. Competitors,
such as alternative trading venues that are not regulated markets
or MTFs are subject to less stringent regulation than an exchange.

Calls for enhanced regulatory scrutiny following the financial crisis
continues to generate risks and opportunities. This may lead to the
following impacts:

m decision by any of Euronext’s regulators to impose measures
which may impact the competitive situation and possible strategy
of the Group;

m potential increase of the fees required to pay towards the
national and European regulators within the European Union and
compliance costs, as well as of the costs of firms undertaking
business in the European securities markets generally;

m delay or denials of regulatory approval requested by Euronext to
further its strategy for initiatives, leverage business opportunities,
change its governance, impacting Euronext’'s competitive position;

m potential fines if, despite all its efforts, Euronext breaches the
regulation, impacting results as well as Euronext’s reputation;

m reduction of Euronext’s bandwidth and agility due to operational
implementation.

The regulatory regime within Europe has been amended and
extended. The revised European Union Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive (MiFID Il / MiFIR) has been effective since
3 January 2018. Compliance with this new regime by all market
actors is slowly changing the competitive landscape and may,
therefore, have an adverse effect on the Company’s business. The
main sources of risk and their possible consequences are closely
monitored and may impact Euronext’s market share or directly its
revenue:

m the impact of the tick size regime, favoring the growth of trading
via systematic internalisers to the detriment of exchanges by
creating an unlevel playing field;

m the open access provisions, as mentioned in the competition
section, increases competition by allowing competitors to
improve their value offer or to create derivatives on benchmarks
historically used exclusively by Euronext;

m the pricing of market data on a reasonable commercial basis
which has yet to be clarified in detail. As uncertainty remains on
ESMA's requirements, there is a risk that the outcome will impact
a significant stream of revenue for Euronext.

The outcome, given the implementation date of 3 January 2018,
is still taking shape. While certain legislative elements of the
framework are already being amended, notably the applicable
framework to systematic internalisers, ESMA and the European
Commission will continue early stage evaluations into parts of the
framework, notably in respect of market data and market structure
in the course of 2019.

Recent regulations, including the General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR), the Benchmark Regulation (BMR) and the Prospectus
Directive (application in July 2019), require significant effort to
implement, impacting operational capacity as well as increasing
risk of non-compliance. Additional regulatory evolutions may affect

2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT ‘ EURONEXT
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RISKS

Euronext activity and/or revenue if designed adversely. Discussions
about an EU Financial Transaction Tax were relaunched in the end
of 2018 and could affect Euronext’s results.

The decision of the United Kingdom to withdraw from the
European Union (Brexit) should have, at a regulatory level, wide-
ranging implications for European financial markets whose full
impact will only become clear once the negotiations between the
European Union and the United Kingdom regarding withdrawal
have clarified the general nature of the post-Brexit relationship
(including the extent to which UK-based firms have access to

Financial Risks

the single market in financial services). As a “no deal” scenario
remains a possible outcome, some emergency equivalences will
be needed and are expected to secure an orderly transition and
to preserve the activity of the industry. However, at the date of
writing of this document, the level of uncertainty is too high to
positively affirm that the Brexit will not affect ease of access
to trading between the UK and the EU, consequently impacting
Euronext’s business, or will not endanger the sustainability of the
location of the Company’s datacenter in the UK.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, to comply with
regulatory requirements and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital and provide return to shareholders.

Euronext N.V.is a holding Company and its ability to generate income
and pay dividends is dependent on the ability of its subsidiaries to

Operational Risks

declare and pay dividends or lend its funds. The actual payment of
future dividends by the Company and the payment of dividends to
the Company by its subsidiaries, if any, will depend on a number of
factors including distributable profits and reserves and minimum
capital requirements mandated by regulatory authorities.

Due to factors mentioned above regarding results, mandated capital
requirements by regulatory authorities and other agreements, the
Company may be constrained with its use of capital.

EMPLOYEES

The Company is dependent on the experience and industry
knowledge of management and other key staff to operate its
business operations and execute its strategies. Euronext recognises
there is a shortage in the employment market for true specialists in
a number of areas, such as in the information technology field and
the field of operation of markets and particular product niches. In
these areas, the Company competes for staff with a large number
of other enterprises.

The Company’s success will depend in part upon its ability to continue
to attract, develop and retain key staff members in a number of
disciplines. A loss of, or an inability to attract senior management or
other key staff could have a material adverse effect on the business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

THIRD-PARTY PROVIDERS

The Group relies on third parties for post-trade services including
clearing and settlement and other services. In particular, under its
clearing service agreements with LCH S.A., the Paris based clearing
house of LCH group Ltd, which is majority owned by LSEG, one of its
competitors, Euronext relies on LCH S.A. to provide Central Counter

‘ EURONEXT 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Party (CCP) services for trades executed on the Company’s cash and
derivatives markets and to manage related CCP functions, such as
risk, novation and multilateral netting. In addition, Euronext relies
on EuroCCP to provide CCP services for trades executed on the
Company's cash markets and to manage related CCP functions.

MiFID Il has brought into force the open access and interoperability
rules in relation to clearinghouses. While there are transitional
arrangements (Art. 54 of EU Regulation No 600/2014) that have
been granted for Euronext, as well as other trading and clearing
venues for a period of 30 months, it is uncertain how this can impact
Euronext in the future also because it is not the ultimate owner of
its clearing solution.

The Group also relies on the services of Euroclear group (“Euroclear”)
for the settlement of cash market trades other than in Portugal and
on the services of InterContinental Exchange, (“ICE”) for the provision
of network and colocation and data centre services.

To the extent that any of the third parties on which Euronext relies
experiences difficulties, materially changes its business relationship
with the Company or is unable for any reason to perform its
obligations, any such event could have a material adverse effect on
the business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows of Euronext.

www.euronext.com



CHANGE MANAGEMENT AND INTEGRATION

The Group’s change agenda is driven by internally determined
programs, acquisitions and external factors. Internal programs
include transforming Euronext technology and business operations
through Optiq’, the new enhanced multi-market trading platform,
evolving its data governance processes and executing its Agility for
Growth strategy including launching of new services and acquisitions.
Acquisitions include Company Webcast, iBabs, FastMatch, InsiderLog,
Euronext Dublin and Commcise. External factors include the changing
business and regulatory landscape, resulting from global economic
factors, as well as MiFID Il implementation and Brexit impacts.

The Company has actively arbitrated in favor of transformation and
steady growth and as a result has taken on operational debt that is
being addressed. As a result, there is a risk that the incoming flow
of acquisitions & integration, project developments, and regulatory
obligations require available resource and thus the level of debt
does not decrease as quickly as expected, which may put growth
opportunities at risk.

The number of significant programs and recent acquisitions, including
the acquisition of Commcise, in progress simultaneously, with related
impacts, that, if not delivered or delivered as originally designed or
with delays, may have an adverse impact on the business, culture,
reputation and financial condition of the Company, including an
increased cost base without a proportionate increase in revenues. The
status of the potential acquisition of Oslo Bgrs VPS is currently ongoing.

TECHNOLOGY

Technology is a key component of Euronext’s business strategy, and is
crucial to the Company's success. Euronext’s business depends on the
performance and stability of complex computer and communications
systems. Heavy use of Euronext’s platforms and order routing systems
during peak trading times or at times of unusual market volatility could
cause its systems to operate slowly or even to fail for periods of time.
These events or other events could cause unanticipated disruptions
in service to exchange members and clients, slower response times
or delays in trade executions and related impacts.

Euronext operates in a business environment that continues to
experience significant and rapid technological change. To remain
competitive, the Company must continue to enhance and improve the
functionality, capacity, accessibility and reliability of its technology.

The Group continues the transformation of its Technology organisation
through its launch of Optiq® cash segment, to be followed by
derivatives, bringing leading technology to ensure high reliability.
Euronext’s success will depend, in part, on this continued innovation
and investment in its trading systems and related ability to respond
to customer demands, understand and react to emerging industry
standards and practices on a cost-effective and timely basis, as well
as in other technologies including leveraging cloud hosting for support
and future services.

Exploiting technology and the ability to expand system capacity
and performance to handle increased demand or any increased
regulatory requirements is critical to Euronext’s success. If the
Group’s technology is not properly managed or the resources
supporting the changes are not properly allocated, Euronext may
lose market share or volumes, which could have an effect on
business and financial results.

RISKS

SECURITY

The secure transmission of confidential information over public
and other networks is a critical element of Euronext’'s operations.
As aresult, the Group accumulates, stores and uses business data
which is protected by business contracts and regulated by various
law, including data protection, in the countries in which it operates.

The Group networks may be vulnerable to exfiltration, unauthorised
access and other security incidents including:

m third parties, includind cloud computing services, to whom
Euronext provides information may not take proper care with
this information and may not be diligent in safeguarding it;

m the Group systems may experience security incidents as the
volume of cyber-attacks are increasing in general and in
particular within the financial sector. Advanced persistent
threats are within the most effective and disruptive cyber-
attacks;

m open source software are used by Euronext within its software
solutions. As the source code of such open source components
is available to the public, hackers may take advantage from such
disclosure to find vulnerabilities;

m persons who circumvent security measures could wrongfully
access the Group's or its customers information, or cause
interruptions or malfunctions in the Company's operations;

m the Group may be a direct or indirect target of attacks by terrorist
or other extremist organisations that employ threatening or
harassing means to achieve their social or political objectives.
They can include cyber-attacks and threats to physical security
and infrastructure.

In the event of an attack or threat of an attack as well as natural
disasters or public health emergencies, the Group may experience
a significant delay in resuming normal business operations.

Security breaches or leakage of sensitive data, also impacting data
protection laws, and other events could cause Euronext to incur
reputational damage, regulatory sanctions, litigation and/or have
an impact on its financial results.

OWNERSHIP AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Euronext owns or licenses rights to a number of trademarks, service
marks, trade names, copyrights, free or open source software and
databases that are used in its business. To protect its intellectual
property rights or any other property rights, Euronext relies on
a combination of trademark laws, copyright laws, trade secret
protection, database laws, confidentiality agreements and other
contractual arrangements with its affiliates, customers, strategic
investors and others. In the event the protective steps taken are
inadequate to deter misappropriation of Euronext’s intellectual
property, Euronext’s reputation could be harmed, affecting its
ability to compete effectively. Further, in defending its ownership
or intellectual property rights may require significant financial and
managerial resources. Any of the foregoing could have a material
adverse effect on the business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT ‘ EURONEXT
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RISKS

Finally, Euronext takes best efforts to prevent infringement of any
third party intellectual property rights, including its use of free
or open source software. However, in the event that Euronext is
accused of alleged intellectual property right infringement, Euronext
may require significant financial and managerial resources for its
legal defense.

Many aspects of Euronext’s business involve litigation risks. Some
other liability risks arise under the laws and regulations relating to
the insurance, tax, anti-money laundering, foreign asset controls,
data privacy and foreign corrupt practices areas. These risks include
potential liability from disputes over terms of a securities trade or
from claims that a system or operational failure or delay caused
monetary losses to a customer, as well as potential liability from
claims that the Group facilitated an unauthorised transaction or that
it provided materially false or misleading statements in connection
with a transaction. These risks include as well potential liability from
disputes as regard non-compliance of the Group to its data privacy
obligations as controller or processor.

* EURONEXT 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Dissatisfied customers may make claims against their service
providers regarding quality of trade execution, improperly settled
trades, mismanagement or even fraud or non-compliance with data
privacy obligations. In this specific case (i.e. non-compliance with
data privacy regulation), claims may also arise from a data subject
as defined by data privacy regulation or data privacy authorities.
Although aspects of the Group’s business may be protected by
regulatory immunity and/or contractual arrangements providing
for limited or no liability clauses, Euronext could nevertheless be
exposed to substantial liability under the laws and regulations and
court decisions in the countries in which it operates, as well as
regulations promulgated by European and other regulators.

The Group could incur significant expenses defending claims, even
those without merit. In addition, an adverse resolution of any lawsuit
or claim against the Group may require it to pay substantial damages
or impose restrictions on how it conducts its business, any of which
could have an effect on both the business and financial results, and
the reputation of the Group.

www.euronext.com
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1.1 Company Profile

Euronext N.V. is a Dutch public company with limited liability
(naamloze Vennootschap) which has its registered office in
Amsterdam. Euronext N.V. is registered with the trade register
of the Chamber of Commerce for Amsterdam, the Netherlands,

Euronext was incorporated under the name Euronext Group N.V. on
15 March 2014 in the context of a demerger of Euronext N.V., which
was a company owned by ICE. Euronext Group N.V. changed its name
to Euronext N.V. on 2 May 2014.

under number 60234520. Euronext N.V. has its main subsidiaries
in Belgium, France, Ireland, the Netherlands, Portugal and the
United Kingdom. Euronext N.V. has expanded its European federal
model, with the acquisition of 100% of the Irish Stock Exchange on
27 March 2018. Euronext N.V. has a two-tier governance structure
with a Supervisory Board and a Managing Board.

The following chart provides with an overview of Euronext N.V.
entities. Percentage refer to both share of capital and voting rights.

100% Enternext
S.A.
100% _ Euronext US Euronext Synapse LLC 100% !
d Inc FastMatch Inc. 97.3% '
100% Euronext E
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. Euronext
Amsterdam N.V.
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N.V./S.A.
100% H ISE Old Co Ltd 100% E
> Irish Stock ISE Stock Exchange Services Ltd 100% H
Exchange Plc European Wholesale Securities Market Ltd 80% |
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100% H
> A ommcise 78% '
> Iilurlc:’nextthJ;( c s 78% :
olding :
100% Euronext Technologies Holding S.A.S. 100% :
°,| EuronextIP & Euronext Unipessoal Lda 100% '
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TliBabs 60% TR
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\ EuroCCP N.V. 20%
| Oslo Bors VPS Holding ASA 5.1%
1 LiquidShare 13.57%

:
:
». Algonext Ltd 50% H

*

Sicovam owns a 15.89% stake in Euroclear.
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1.1.1  HISTORY

Today, Euronext is a pan-European exchange group, offering a
diverse range of products and services and combining transparent
and efficient equity, fixed income securities and derivatives markets
in Amsterdam, Brussels, Dublin (since March 2018), Lisbon, London
and Paris. Euronext’s businesses comprise: equity, debts, funds
and ETFs listing, corporate and investors services, cash trading,
foreign exchange trading, derivatives tradingadvanced data
services, post-trade services as well as technology.

Euronext in its original form was created in 2000 and takes its roots
from the European construction. It was first the result of a three-
way merger of the Paris, Amsterdam and Brussels exchanges,
soon completed by the acquisition of the London-based derivatives
market, LIFFE, and the merger with the Portuguese exchange. The
continental exchanges were combined into a unique federal model
with unified rules and a Single Order Book (except for Portugal),
operating on the same electronic trading platform and cleared by
LCH S.A. CCP, creating the first genuinely cross-border exchange
in Europe and pre-dating all initiatives by policy makers to allow
for the creation of pan-European market places.

In May 2006, Euronext entered into an agreement with NYSE
group for the combination of their respective businesses. The new
holding company of these combined businesses, NYSE Euronext,
was subsequently listed on the New York Stock Exchange and on
Euronext Paris.

In 2010, NYSE Euronext launched Euronext London, a London-
based securities market aiming at attracting international issuers
looking to list in London and benefiting from Euronext’'s value
proposition.

In November 2013, ICE, an operator of global markets and
clearing houses, acquired NYSE Euronext. A key element of the
overall transaction was the separation and IPO of NYSE Euronext’s
continental European exchanges as a stand-alone entity. In order
to do this, ICE carved the continental European operations of NYSE
Euronext and Euronext London into a newly formed entity, which
was subsequently renamed Euronext N.V. Since its successful IPO
on 20 June 2014, Euronext N.V. has been an independent listed
company.

In May 2016, Euronext N.V. launched its strategic plan named
“Agility for Growth” which defines the growth ambitions for 2019,
both through organic growth and bolt-on acquisitions. In 2017,
Euronext N.V. has diversified its top line, through the acquisition of
90% of the shares of the forex platform FastMatch, and by investing
in corporates services companies (see 1.2.5).

1.1.2 AMBITION

Euronext is the leading continental pan-European marketplace for
the real economy. Its core mission and the driver of its strategy is to
power pan-European capital markets to finance the real economy,
while delivering value to shareholders.

As a pan-European group with a profile ‘united in diversity’,
Euronext’'s ambition is to play a constructive role in the local
ecosystems and act as an industry problem solver while
contributing to making Europe an attractive block in a multipolar
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world. The Group’s model is best suited to contribute to the
construction of a true pan-European market. It operates regulated
markets in Belgium, France, Ireland, the Netherlands, Portugal
and the United Kingdom, all of which are connected via a unique,
single trading platform with a harmonised regulatory framework.
Euronext can easily connect other independent exchanges to its
single trading platform, as demonstrated with Euronext Dublin
on 4 February 2019. Euronext’s unique Single Order Book allows
investors to get the benefit of being able to trade, clear and settle
in a uniform way throughout various jurisdictions while also
accessing a broad and deep pool of liquidity. Euronext is also ready
to welcome other independent Eurozone market platforms within
the Euronext model, which is demanding in terms of commercial
and financial performance, ambitious in terms of innovation, and
fundamentally federal in its governance, as demonstrated by the
closing on 27 March 2018 of the acquisition of Euronext Dublin,
formerly the Irish Stock Exchange.

The Group offers a wide range of products and services to the
community of issuers and gives them access to a broad and
diversified investor base for the listing activity. As part of its Agility
for Growth strategic plan, Euronext is developing a complete suite
of products offering to help private and public companies make
the most effective use of financial markets by providing them with
innovative solutions and tailor-made advisory services.

As an operator of regulated markets, Euronext’'s mission is to
bring together buyers and sellers in venues that are transparent,
efficient and reliable. The Group combines cash, fixed income
securities and derivatives markets in its six locations together
with a global foreign exchange trading venue. Euronext’s broad
portfolio of products, services and platforms covers the full range
of market services, including the provision of market information,
the development and operation of information technology systems,
and the ease of access to settlement and clearing facilities.

1.1.3 BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

As an exchange operator, Euronext’s operations and performance
depend significantly on market and economic conditions in Europe,
but also the United States, Asia and the rest of the world. Euronext
is operating in a business environment that is best described as
a complex non-linear system with dependencies on decisions
of policy makers and regulators worldwide, with subsequent
developments in the legal, regulatory and tax environment as well
as the macroeconomic environment both in Europe and abroad.

Competition

On the corporate listing side, competition between exchanges
for domestic issuers is rare. When a domestic issuer lists on
another exchange, it tends to be on an sector specific market
rather than on another European stock exchange, in particular in
respect of global companies and SMEs in the technology sector.
As part of its Agility for Growth strategy, Euronext strives to
attract issuers from new markets: Germany, Switzerland, Italy
and Spain and therefore will face the competition of local market
operators. Euronext has offices in four European cities outside
its core markets — in Munich (Germany), in Milan (ltaly), in Madrid
(Spain) and in Zurich (Switzerland) - to assist Tech companies
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in developing their business on a greater scale through capital
markets. Euronext has welcomed 6 companies from those
countries in 2018 on its markets, additionally 135 companies
participated in the TechShare program.

While competition in the cash trading market is relatively mature,
in recent years Euronext has faced increased pressure on
pricing and market share in equity options trading, in particular
from new entrants to the market that have fee structures that
are significantly lower than the Company’s fee structure and a
reduced cost structure aligned with their narrower service offering.
However, Euronext remained the largest liquidity pool in Europe,
with a market share on its cash equity markets above 60%.

The competition for proprietary real-time market data is still
limited as trading participants prefer to receive and use market
data from the home exchange rather than using substitute pricing.
However, Euronext is experiencing an increasing pressure, both
from a regulatory (MiFID Il) and competitive perspective (alternative
trading platforms, including MTFs such as CBOE who focus on the
most liquid blue chip stocks). Nevertheless, Euronext believes that
diversity in a wide range of stocks is Euronext’s strength in this
increasingly competitive environment and will help Euronext retain
its position as preferred data source.

In less time critical areas such as reference data — and particularly
corporate actions and historical data — participants want a
consolidated European feed from a single source. Euronext is not
the only source of corporate actions or historical data so there is
more competition in these areas.

As for market operator technology, the market for financial
information technology is intensely competitive and characterised
by rapidly changing technology and new entrants. Euronext has
built the next generation trading platform, Optig®, and is well
positioned to benefit from its state-of-the art stability and latency.

Regulated Markets

Regulated markets are markets constituted in an EEA Member
State’s territory that fulfilled the criteria of the MiFID. Regulated
markets have higher disclosure and transparency requirements
than multi-lateral trading facilities (“MTF").Trading on regulated
markets is subject to stricter rules than on other types of trading
venues.

A regulated market cannot operate without securing prior
authorisation from its regulator(s). Authorisation is subject
to compliance with organisational requirements pertaining to
conflicts of interest, identification and management of operational
risks, systems resilience, the existence of transparent and non-
discriminatory trading rules, as well as sufficient financial
resources.

‘ EURONEXT 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Multilateral Trading Facilities

Multilateral trading facilities (“MTFs”) are primarily institutional
investor-focused marketplaces offering trading in pan-European
securities on low latency, low cost platforms and are usually
operated by financial institutions (e.g. banks, brokerages) or
operators of regulated markets. MTFs are also subject to less
stringent disclosure, transparency and trading rules than regulated
markets and have more discretion to operate and organise
themselves.

Euronext operates a number of MTFs, including its SME and
midcap-dedicated marketplace Euronext Growth (formerly
Alternext) (Belgium, France, Portugal), Enterprise Securities
Market in Ireland, Euronext Access (formerly the Marché Libre)
in Belgium and in France. Euronext also operates BondMatch for
institutional bond trading in France, and several in Ireland: Global
Exchange Market, for listing debt securities aimed at professional
investors and investment funds, Atlantic Securities Market, for US
listed companies seeking to access euro pools of capital. Finally,
Euronext operates Euronext Block, a pan-European equity block
pool from the United Kingdom).

Systematic Internaliser

The systematic internaliser (“SI”) regime was introduced by MiFID
in 2007 which defines a Sl as an investment firm which, on an
organised, frequent systematic and substantial basis, deals on
own account when executing client orders outside a regulated
market, an MTF or an OTF without operating a multilateral system.
Sls are bilateral trading platforms usually operated by banks or
brokers and offering them the possibility to match client orders
against their own capital, as an alternative to sending their orders
to multilateral trading venues such as regulated markets or MTFs.
Sls are subject to much lighter organisational, disclosure, and
transparency requirements than regulated markets and MTFs
while some elements of the framework could be amended (see
Risk chapter).

Over-the-counter (“OTC")

In all asset classes, Euronext is faced with competition from
unlicensed marketplaces operating over-the-counter (“OTC").

www.euronext.com
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1.2 Strategy: "Aqility for Growth” Strategic Plan

Since the IPO, through optimal resource allocation and cost control,
as well as stronger development of underexploited businesses,
Euronext has strived to deliver its solutions for the real economy.

Following the delivery of its IPO objectives a year in advance, in
May 2016 Euronext published its strategic plan, Agility for Growth,
outlining its growth ambitions to 2019. Under this plan, Euronext
announced that it would enhance its agility in order to strengthen
the resilience of its core business, to capture strategic opportunities
and to grow in selected segments. The driver of this plan is to fulfil
Euronext’s core mission: power pan-European capital markets to
finance the real economy while delivering value to shareholders.

The strategic plan relies on capturing opportunities arising from
the environment.

In details, the 2016-2019 strategic plan relies on:
m enhanced agility through:

= a disciplined innovation strategy,

= intensified client centricity,

= continued efforts to reduce cost,

= a strengthened information technology and infrastructure
platform,

= the attracting and development of best talent and
entrepreneurs, and

= the deployment of a disciplined M&A programme to accelerate
its growth strategy in selected segments;

m strengthened core business; and
m selected growth initiatives.

This plan would translate into a set of new financial targets for the
2015-2019 period and Group EBITDA margin excluding clearing
operations, would reach 61 to 63% in 2019. This plan would deliver
enhanced shareholder value, through a disciplined capital allocation
policy. In 2018, Euronext has achieved most of its 2019 targets one
year in advance and will announce a new strategic plan along with
mid-term targets in the course of the second half of 2019.

1.2.1  ENHANCING AGILITY

Innovation in capital markets should offer Euronext opportunities to
develop new services with clients. The ongoing regulatory changes
would increasingly drive value towards transparent, neutral,
centrally cleared, open and regulated markets.

Client centricity plays a key role in business development.
Euronext launched the third edition of its annual client satisfaction
survey in 2018. Last year's feedback allowed to identify and
drive improvements in client interactions, product development
and service offerings. In parallel to the client survey, Euronext
is conducting an internal online survey to measure employee
appreciation and understanding of Client Centricity and the initiatives
that have been implemented over the last year.

In terms of proposing innovating services to the financial
community, Euronext continue to actively support the development
of Liquidshare, the European blockchain fintech venture for SME
post-trade, to improve SME’s access to capital markets, increasing
the transparency and security of post-trading operations using
blockchain. LiquidShare announced the opening of the pilot phase
on 17 December 2018 on Euronext’s markets. Euronext announced
in December 2018 an exclusive commercial partnership with the
Fintech PrimaryBid to deploy its innovative platform in Euronext
countries, allowing retail investors across Europe access to
discounted share issuances for any European public company.

In line with its announced Agility for Growth strategy, the ongoing cost
management discipline has continued all over 2018, and Euronext
announced in November 2018, and confirmed in February 2019 it has
achieved its 2019 €22m cost reduction target one year in advance,
with €23.8m of cumulated costs savings, compared to 1 April 2016.

In order to upgrade its information technology, Euronext continue to
deliver improved customer experience through the migration from
its previous technology platform Universal Trading Platform (“UTP”)
to its new leading edge platform: Optiq®. Optiq® deliver a simplified
harmonised messaging model with maximum flexibility, within a
single trading platform for cash and derivatives, providing clients
with high performance and stability. In April and June 2018, Optig®
trading engine went live for fixed income and cash markets, with
impressive stability and performance. Optiq® for derivatives trading
is expected to be delivered during the course of 2019.

Euronext has undertaken an opportunistic approach of mergers and
acquisitions, translating into a first set of deals to complement its
business mix (see section 1.2.4).

1.2.2 STRENGTHENING CORE BUSINESS

Euronext is further strengthening its core business, creating value
for clients and shareholders alike.

The main levers to achieve these objectives are to:

m expand Euronext’s listing business to further finance the real
economy in Europe;

m maintain the Company’s successful strategy of optimising its core
cash equity business to remain the market of reference for trading
in Euronext listed companies;

= migrate Euronext Block on Optig®in 2019 to allow participants to
trade blocks proactively in a safe environment and benefit from
Optig® performance and client reach;

m extend the product mix of the derivatives franchise to deliver
risk management tools for clients and provide OTC trade capture
services;

m leverage Euronext’s index platform and market data franchise to
enrich the value proposition for customers; and

m increase technology value proposition and competitiveness with
the launch of the Optig® platform.
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1.2.3 GROWING IN SELECTED SEGMENTS

Euronext focuses on several growth initiatives in selected segments
to:

m add value to issuers, with two ambitions: become the exchange
for European Tech SMEs and provide modular corporate services.
In 2017, Euronext decided to expand outside its core markets
and opened local offices in four European countries identified as
high-potential ecosystems to assist tech companies in scaling up
their business through capital markets, in addition, as part of its
ambition to help companies and organisations to be more efficient,
Euronext launched Euronext Corporate Services. More information
on these initiatives are disclosed in section 1.3.3.2;

m add value to investors, with ambitions to provide a one-stop-shop
pan-European ETF platform and deliver user choice in clearing
for the equity markets, and diversify the post trade franchise.
More information are disclosed in section 1.3.4.1. and section 1.3.6.

1.2.4 ACCELERATING PROFITABLE GROWTH
THROUGH TARGETED MERGERS

AND ACQUISITIONS

In order to accelerate Euronext’s standalone strategy, its growth
ambitions will be achieved both organically, leveraging on its
existing assets and talents, and inorganically, through disciplined
and selected bolt-on acquisitions.

In an evolving industry landscape, Euronext is carefully assessing
potential opportunities resulting in transformational transactions
that will create value for clients and shareholders.

In 2018, Euronext made the following acquisitions and concluded
partnerships in accordance with the Agility for Growth strategy:

= adding value to issuers - provide modular corporate services:
In January 2018, Euronext acquired 80% of the capital of
InsiderLog, a Stockholm-based leading player in the field of
insider list management, for a cash consideration of €5.8 million.
InsiderLog automates the management of insider lists in a way that
both saves time and ensures compliance with the requirements of
the Market Abuse Regulation. This transaction further strengthens
Euronext’s value proposition for listed companies by addressing
a strong need from issuers. The InsiderLog solutions will be
distributed across the six core Euronext markets, in Belgium,
France, Ireland, the Netherlands, Portugal and the United Kingdom,
and in financial centres where Euronext has established European
Tech Hub teams such as Madrid, Milan, Zurich and Munich;

= expanding Euronext’s federal model: In March 2018, Euronext
completed the acquisition of 100% of the shares and voting rights
of the Irish Stock Exchange (“ISE”), after receiving regulatory
approvals. Headquartered in Dublin, ISE is Ireland’s incumbent
stock exchange operator and a global leader in the listing of
debt and funds securities. ISE is the first pool of liquidity for
Irish equities, the first debt listing venue globally and the first
fund listing venue globally. The transaction brings together
two highly complementary businesses with significant growth

(1) Based on an exchange rate of EUR 1.00 = NOK 9.97 as of 23 December 2018.

(2) https://www.euronext.com/listview/investor-financial-events/862111
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opportunities and expands Euronext’s federal model to a new
attractive European country. It creates a leading global player in
debt and fund listings, combining the listing expertise of ISE with
the traded markets expertise of Euronext. Euronext benefits from
ISE’s leading global positions in debt and fund listings as well
as its unique product and listing expertise. The acquisition also
enhances Euronext’'s growth outlook thanks to ISE's embedded
core businesses’ growth, complemented by the additional
strategic growth plans for ISE, which is reinforced with the full
support of Euronext. The acquisition of ISE by Euronext, combined
with Ireland’s very competitive economic environment, further
strengthens Ireland’s position as a strong European anchor to take
advantage of Brexit opportunities. This transaction also develops
the Irish capital markets ecosystem within a European context and
as part of Euronext’s core mission to power the real economy. ISE
has been renamed Euronext Dublin on 27 March 2018. Euronext
Dublin contributed €24.6 million to Group revenue, for 9 months
of consolidation, and successful integration process with merged
cross-border teams and administration systems. €2.7 million
synergies were extracted in 2018 and Euronext Dublin markets
migrated to Optig® trading platform in February 2019;

capturing opportunities arising from the environment:
In December 2018, Euronext acquired a 78% stake in Commcise, a
Software as a Service (“SaaS”) provider of award-winning research
evaluation and commission management solutions for financial
services firms, from its founders for an initial cash consideration
of £27 million. Founded in 2013 and headquartered in London,
Commcise offers a unique cloud-based research commission
management, evaluation and accounting solution built to meet
the needs of asset managers, brokers and independent research
providers. Commcise is the only vendor which combines research
funding, consumption and accounting into a single fully integrated
platform;

contemplated acquisition of Oslo Bars VPS: On 24 December
2018, Euronext announced it had approached the Board of
Directors of Oslo Bgrs VPS Holding ASA (“Oslo Bers VPS”) to
seek its support for a €625m cash tender offer for all the
outstanding shares of Oslo Bgrs VPS, the Norwegian Stock
Exchange and national CSD operator, headquartered in Oslo. On
14 January 2019, Euronext published the offer document for its
previously announced all-cash tender offer to acquire all issued
and outstanding shares of Oslo Bers VPS for NOK 6.24 billion
(€625m ). The offer document is available on Euronext’'s
website, www.euronext.com @, Following an invitation to
consider an acquisition of shares in Oslo Bgrs VPS organized
by a group of its shareholders, Euronext has already secured
support for the offer from Oslo Bers VPS shareholders
representing the majority of the total number of outstanding
shares through irrevocable binding pre-commitments to tender
shares in the context of the offer, and share purchases.
These irrevocable undertakings remain valid regardless of any
competing offer that has been or may be made in the context
of this transaction until 31 August 2019. In addition, 22
shareholders decided on 11 February 2019 to strengthen their
commitment to support Euronext’'s Offer by extending the
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deadline for their irrevocable pre-commitments to the end of
December 2019. As of 1 April 2019, Euronext has secured 53.1%
of the share capital of Oslo Bgrs VPS through a combination of
8.1% of shares owned directly and 45.0% of shares committed
to Euronext in the form of irrevocable pre-commitments and
tendered shares. The original offer price of NOK145 per share,
ie NOK6.24 billion (€625m ) for all outstanding shares of Oslo
Bars VPS, has been amended to NOK158 per share, ie.
NOK6.79 billion (€695 million ?) on 11 February 2019, in order
to demonstrate its willingness to share the benefits of this
transaction with Oslo Bgrs VPS shareholders, the majority of
whom supports Euronext’s offer and to continue the dialogue
with the minority of Oslo Bers VPS’ shareholders who have not
yet committed their shares for Euronext. The acceptance period
of the tender offer commenced on 14 January 2019, and has
been amended on 11 March 2019 and on 1 April 2019 so that
Euronext will continue to receive and accept acceptances of the
Offer up to 6 May 2019 at 18:00 Central European Time. Euronext
has announced on 1 April 2019 that Tom Vidar Rygh, Senior
Advisor at international private equity fund Nordic Capital and
previous Chair and Member of the Board of Oslo Bers, has
accepted to join the board of Oslo Bgrs VPS as an independent
board member when the contemplated transaction is completed,
subject to the usual regulatory approval. His strong profile and
connection with the Norwegian ecosystem will support
Euronext’s growth ambitions in the Nordics. On 4 March 2019,
Euronext noted that the Oslo Bers VPS Board of Directors has
considered Euronext’s increased offer announced on 11 February
2019 as equal to the updated Nasdaq offer from a purely financial
point of view. Euronext also noted that, following Nasdaq's
announced decision to match Euronext’s offer, the Board of
Directors has upheld its recommendation of Nasdaq as the
preferred bidder in line with its commitment to do so under any
circumstances. Euronext reiterated it will complete the transaction
once regulatory clearance has been obtained, after the meeting
of the other conditions previously stated. The offer is subject to
fulfilment or waiver of certain conditions, including but not limited
to minimum acceptance level of at least 50.01% of Oslo Bgrs VPS
outstanding shares (including shares already held by Euronext),
condition which is already met, regulatory approvals, short
confirmatory due diligence, a favourable vote from a majority of
Euronext shareholders and completion of the transaction before
31 December 2019. On 1 April 2019, Euronext announced it has
received the declaration of non objection from its College of
Regulators for the contemplated acquisition of up to 100% of the
capital of Oslo Bers VPS, meeting one of the condition precedents
of its offer. Euronext submitted its suitability application to
Finanstilsynet concurrently to the launch of its Offer and has
regular dialogue with all relevant parties. Euronext is authorised
to operate regulated markets in Belgium, France, Ireland, the
Netherlands, Portugal and the United Kingdom, and believes that
its strategic ambition would preserve and strengthen the
Norwegian financial market ecosystem. Euronext is confident that
the transaction can be completed during the course of Q2 2019
within the customary regulatory approval period in Norway
according to applicable laws and regulations. Euronext is
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determined to acquire Oslo Bgrs VPS and remains committed to
a constructive and continuous dialogue with Oslo Bers VPS
shareholders, board and management as well as the wider
Norwegian ecosystem. Euronext’s Reference shareholders have
also confirmed their joint support to Euronext for this transaction.

1.2.5 SETTING AMBITIOUS FINANCIAL

OBJECTIVES

Euronext's Agility for Growth strategy aimed to translate into a set of
financial objectives for 2019. In February 2019, Euronext announced
that most of this objectives have been achieved one year in advance
in 2018, and will only focus on a cost guidance in 2019 (see section
1.2.7).

The initial 2019 targets were the following:

= in May 2016, based on the current trading environment and
competitive landscape, Euronext has set a growth objective of
2% CAGR over the 2015-2019 period for its core business revenue.
The revenue expected from the identified growth initiatives would
bring additional revenue of €70 million. As a result, Group revenue
was expected to reach €575 million, vs. €467 million in 2015,
excluding clearing revenue. These expectations relied both on
factors that Euronext management can influence such as product
and service launches and on factors that are outside its influence
(global volume environment, macro trends, political uncertainty,
Brexit, competition, ...);

m cost management remains a key pillar of Euronext’s strategy
to 2019. A target of €22 million of gross efficiencies has been
identified, representing about €15 million net, taking into account
an annual inflation rate of 1% over the period. The restructuring
costs requested to deliver the additional cost efficiencies were
estimated at 1.5 times the gross efficiencies, or €33 million;

m the completion of the strategic plan and the growth initiatives would
induce about €35 million of additional operational expenses. On a
net basis, the Company’s cost base would then increase by about
1% CAGR over the period (excluding clearing operations). Therefore
factoring in these revenue and cost assumptions, Euronext's EBITDA
margin was expected to range between 61% and 63% by 2019 on
this perimeter, excluding clearing and new perimeter.

Update in 2018

In 2018, Euronext has extended its scope of activity both organically
and through acquisitions. Furthermore, most of the core business
2019 targets of the Agility for Growth plan have been achieved one
year in advance.

m “Deliver value to shareholders”:

2018 core business and selected growth initiatives (excluding
clearing) EBITDA margin at 61.6%, reaching one year in advance
the 61-63% 2019 EBITDA margin target;

~€340 million of capital deployed in revenue diversification and
expansion of Euronext decentralised model;

(1) Based on an exchange rate of EUR 1.00 = NOK 9.97 as of 23 December 2018.
(2) EUR 9.77/NOK FX rate as of 8 February 2019; before additional interest payment.
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= ~€100 million of capital deployed in bolt-on deals, in the initial
€100-150 million envelope;

= Euronext rated A (outlook stable) by S&P. in line with expected
investment grade profile.

= “Enhance agility”:

= 2019 cost reduction target achieved one year in advance with
€23.8 million of cumulated core business gross savings achieved
since Q2 2016 (vs. €22 million targeted) thanks to continued cost
discipline, with less than half of expected restructuring costs
incurred (€14.6 million vs. €33 million targeted);

= Optiqg® trading platform delivered in 2017 for Market Data, 2018
for Cash markets, February 2019 for Euronext Dublin and planned
by the end of 2019 for Derivatives markets.

m “Strengthen resilience of the core business”:

u continued core business revenue growth: +2.0% CAGR 215-201 VS.
2.0% CAGR2015.2079 targeted,'

= increased market share on cash trading to 65% on average
since 2017 (vs. >60% targeted) and >50% on French equity options
(vs >50% targeted), and sustained yield on cash trading.

= “Grow in selected segments”: £17.6 million incremental revenue
in 2018 vs. €55 million targeted in 2019. Corporate Services recorded
strong performance and the Tech SMEs initiative achieved good
traction. ETF MTF is expected to be live in 2019. Other initiatives
are not expected to provide further revenue in 2019. Euronext
will continue the development of innovative projects and organic
initiatives.

= “Create optionality in clearing” with investment in EuroCCP
in 2016 and the renewed 10-year agreement with LCH S.A. along
with a 11.1% equity stake and a strong pre-emption right in 2017.
Preferred user choice model for equity clearing is now live.

The 2019 only remaining target is presented in section 1.2.7.

1.2.6 ENHANCING SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Euronext intends to pursue a very disciplined capital allocation policy.
The dividend policy of 50% of reported net earnings was confirmed,
providing shareholders with consistent capital return and enabling the
Company to deploy its strategy. In addition, Euronext has set in 2017
a floor at €1.42 dividend per share for every fiscal year until 2019.

This also includes the possibility to execute its value accretive
bolt-on acquisition strategy while maintaining sufficient financial
flexibility for potential transformational transactions.

Euronext considers its capital management policy as a core priority
and a key part of its value proposition to shareholders, and will
return any excess of capital on its balance sheet in the absence of
transformational deals during the period.

1.2.7 STRATEGIC TARGETS

AND PROSPECTS IN 2019

To simplify and improve the tracking of its performance, Euronext
announced in February 2019 it will now report only group
performance (including selected growth initiatives and new
perimeter). New mid-term targets will be presented in H2 2019 as
a part of the new strategic plan. In 2019, Euronext expects to limit
the growth rate of its operating costs to a low single digit ", despite
the consolidation of Euronext Dublin for the full year of 2019 @.

In addition, Euronext will continue the development of Optig®, with
the trading platform for derivatives planned to be live in 2019.

Euronext will pursue the process related to the contemplated
acquisition of Oslo Bgrs VPS.

1.3 Description of the Business

1.3.1  BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Euronext is a pan-European exchange group offering a diverse
range of products and services and combining transparent and
efficient equity, fixed income securities and derivatives markets in
Amsterdam, Brussels, Dublin, Lisbon, London and Paris. Euronext’s
businesses comprise listing, cash trading, derivatives trading, spot FX
trading, advanced data services, post-trade and technologies & other.

Euronext's markets provide the leading listing venues in continental
Europe based on the number of companies listed as of 31 December
2018. Nearly 1,300 issuers representing a combined market
capitalisation of approximately €3.4 trillion were admitted to trading

(1) Compared to Group operating costs excluding D&A for 2018 of €260.8m

on Euronext's markets as at 31 December 2018. In addition, the
Company has 1,150 exchange traded funds (“ETFs”) and over 77,000
structured products. As of 31 December 2018, Euronext ranked first
in Europe in terms of market capitalisation of listed companies and
second in terms of number of companies listed among the largest
exchange groups in Europe, excluding Bolsas y Mercados Espafoles
(on which a large proportion of listed issuers are open-ended
investment companies, limiting comparability).

Euronext ranked second in terms of monthly order book trading
volume in cash products for the last twelve months ended
31 December 2018 among the incumbent stock exchanges in Europe
(excluding BATS-Chi-X).

(2) For 2018, Euronext Dublin costs were only consolidated for 3 quarters. As a reminder, the operating costs for Euronext Dublin for Q1 2018 were €5.8m
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Euronext’s pan-European cash equities trading venue is the market
leader in cash equity trading in its five home continental European
markets of Belgium, France, Ireland, the Netherlands and Portugal,
based on domestic market capitalisation as of 31 December 2018.
Euronext market share reached 66.1% on cash trading market over
2018. Euronext provides multiple marketplaces including its MTFs,
for investors, broker-dealers and other market participants to meet
directly to buy and sell cash equities, fixed income securities and
exchange traded products (“ETPs").

Euronext’s derivatives trading business has a strong market position
on benchmark index futures and options such as the CAC 40°, AEX®,
BEL 20® and PSI 209, single stock options and futures and commodity
derivatives. It ranks third among European exchange groups in
terms of open interests of derivatives traded as at 31 December
2018. With the CAC 40® being the second most traded national index
in Europe for example, Euronext offers options contracts based on
all of the blue-chip equities listed on Euronext, thereby reinforcing
liquidity with respect to those equities. The commodity derivatives
offered by the derivatives trading business include the milling wheat
futures contract which is a world class contract for the European
Union agriculture market.

Euronext’'s advanced data services business distributes and sells
real-time, historic and reference data to global data vendors, such
as Reuters and Bloomberg, as well as to financial institutions and
individual investors. With a portfolio of over 1,100 benchmark indices
and iNAVS, including CAC 40® in France and AEX® in the Netherlands,
the Company is a leading provider of indices.

Post-trade services are an important part of the services Euronext
provides to its clients. In 2013, the Company entered into a clearing
agreement with LCH S.A., the Paris-based clearing house of LCH
Group Limited (“LCH.group”), in respect of the clearing of Euronext’s
cash products. In 2017, Euronext renewed the separate derivatives
clearing agreement with LCH S.A. that provides for a revenue
sharing arrangement in respect of the clearing of Euronext listed
derivatives, and became minority shareholder with strong pre-
emption rights, with 11.1% of LCH S.A. capital. In addition, Euronext
owns and operates Interbolsa, the Portuguese national Central
Securities Depository (“CSD").

Since 2016, Euronext owns a 20% equity stake in EuroCCP. EuroCCP is
the leading CCP for pan-European equity markets providing clearing
and settlement services. Following this acquisition, Euronext is an
equal shareholder in the Company alongside ABN Amro Clearing
Bank, CBOE, The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (DTCC) and
Nasdag. This deal enabled Euronext to offer user choice in clearing for
the equity markets within the Eurozone, through the implementation
of a preferred CCP model followed by a fully interoperable service,
which will be open to other CCPs in due course.

Euronext Technology Solutions & other business offers technology
solutions and services to exchanges and venue operators. These
solutions and services use Optiq® and other applications developed
by Euronext or licensed from third-parties. Optiq® has already been
licensed to five international exchanges. This rapid take-up by the
exchange industry demonstrates the attractiveness of the reliability,
flexibility and cost of ownership benefits that Optiq® offers. To drive
further sales, Euronext has appointed a global systems integrator as
its sales and delivery partner for Optig®. The global sales capabilities
of this partner will enable Euronext to promote and deliver Optiq®
cost effectively to exchanges and venue operators around the world.
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Euronext continues to provide software support and maintenance
services for the legacy trading platforms, Euronext UTP and Nouveau
Systéme de Cotation (“NSC™"). Euronext has a perpetual, royalty-free
license from ICE to use, modify and sub-license these platforms
(see section 5.2 “Material contracts and related party transactions”).

In addition to software licensing, Euronext offers access to its trading
software in the form of managed services. Exchanges and venue
operators can take advantage of fully-hosted trading and clearing
platforms without investing in data center or network infrastructure.
With banks and financial intermediaries increasingly seeing
migration to cloud and software-as-a-service as solutions to the
competing pressures of cost-reduction and regulatory complexity,
Euronext’'s experience as a service provider is receiving renewed
interest. Euronext’s MiFID Il compliant MTF and Sl services build
on Euronext's own software, processes and infrastructure and
offer clients an effective way to reduce costs without increasing
regulatory risk.

The Technologies and other business also receives revenue for
network connectivity and server colocation under a revenue sharing
agreement with ICE. This agreement enables Euronext to benefit
from service sales to clients who connect to its markets via the ICE
SFTI® network or who take colocation space in the ICE data centers
that house Euronext’s trading platforms.

1.3.2 STRENGTHS

(1) (2]

focus on core resilient model
European markets delivering consistent
growth and
profitability

© 4] (5)

liquidity and offering of a wide united in diversity’
transparency to all range of product with an open federal
market participants model
through regulated

exchanges

Focus on Core European Markets

Euronext benefits from a diverse client base, both in terms of
geographic distribution and type of trading flow. The Company has an
established continental European and United Kingdom client base,
representing 50% of cash equities trading average daily volume
and 72% of derivatives trading average daily volume for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A substantial portion of the flow from the
United Kingdom is from global clients with headquarters based in
the United States. While United States and Asian clients accounted
for 45% and 4% respectively of Euronext’s cash equities trading
average daily volume and 28% and 0% respectively of its derivatives
trading average daily volume for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group believes these geographic client segments are currently
underexploited and offer potential for growth.
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Resilient Model Delivering Consistent Growth
and Profitability

Euronext's sources of revenues are diversified across the businesses,
markets and client segments. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
approximately 44% of the Company’s revenues were generated by

the non-volume related businesses. Non-volume related businesses
include advanced data services, listings excluding IPOs, custody and
settlement, and Euronext Technology Solutions & other. This helps
to limit Euronext’s exposure to cyclicality in demand for particular
products or services or in individual markets.

The following table sets out information relating to the sources of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 and for the year

ended 31 December 2017:

Year ended 31 December 2018
Revenue % of total revenues

In thousands of euros

Listing 106,490
Trading revenue 276,572
of which:

m Cash trading 210,947

m Derivatives trading 43,910

m Spot FX trading 21,715
Advanced data services 118,298
Post-trade 77,381
of which:

m Clearing 55,331

m Custody and Settlement 22,050
Euronext Technology Solutions & other 36,063
Other income 229
TOTAL REVENUE 615,033

Year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue % of total revenues

17.3% 84,247 15.8%
45.0% 237,854 44.7%
34.3% 190,276 35.7%
7.1% 40,339 7.6%
3.5% 7,239 1.4%
19.2% 104,673 19.7%
12.6% 71,698 13.5%
9.0% 51,132 9.6%
3.6% 20,566 3.9%
5.9% 33,465 6.3%
0.0% 357 0.1%

532,294

Euronext's businesses are characterised by recurring revenue
streams which generate resilient and robust free cash flow and allow
Euronext to operate and invest in its business with flexibility. The
Group’s market expertise and proven, multi-asset class technology
infrastructure allow Euronext to launch new products without
substantial additional capital expenditure. Further, the Company’s
trading businesses do not expose it to credit risk or counterparty
risk, which is borne by the counterparties to the trade and not by the
markets. Euronext believes that its capital-light business and resilient
free cash flow generation provide a potential for attractive return for
shareholders while observing its regulatory capital requirements.

Liquidity and transparency to all market
participants through regulated exchanges

Euronext’s cash equities markets have a diverse member base by
geography and trading profile, making for a particularly rich and
diversified order book.

Euronext offers superior market quality to competitors: in
December 2018, Euronext provided for blue-chips on average 83%
presence at EBBO (European Best Bid and Offer), of which 63% was the
first to set the EBBO. This ability to make the EBBO demonstrates the
leading role of Euronext in the price forming of its listed securities and
in ensuring the best execution for its investors. In addition the average
displayed market depth at the Euronext best limit is equivalent to five
times — or €45,430 - the average trade size, thus demonstrating the
ability to absorb large orders in full transparency and at minimal cost,
as Euronext’'s average spread was 4.65 basis points.
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The combination of Euronext’s position as a leading pan-European
trading venue, the quality of its markets and the expertise of the
Company’'s teams have enabled Euronext to maintain a relatively
stable market share in cash equities above 60% in the trading of
the securities listed on its markets since June 2011.

The relative share of trading on competing platforms has been
relatively stable over the past five years. The primary tool for
supporting market share is the flagship Supplemental Liquidity
Provision programme, which rewards liquidity providers for
ensuring Euronext’'s market quality remains high, whilst balancing
against yield management considerations.

Offering of a Wide Range Of Product Services
and Platforms

Euronext's issuer base is diverse, comprising about 1,300 companies
from within its home markets as well as elsewhere in Europe,
internationally and span ten sectors by industry classification
benchmark. Euronext’s corporate issuers differ in size and represent
a combined market capitalisation of €3.4 trillion.

The Company is the third-largest exchange traded funds (“ETF”) market
in continental Europe by number of ETF trades, with 1,150 listed ETFs
and an average daily trading value of approximately €323 million from
January to December 2018. Euronext is the second-largest warrants
and certificates market in Europe, with over 77,000 instruments at
31 December 2018, and in total nearly 200,000 products have been
listed in 2018. More than 6.7 million trades took place on those
instruments in the twelve months ended 31 December 2018.

www.euronext.com



Euronext is also a leading pan-European derivatives trading venue,
with derivatives trading activities across financial and commodity
derivative products. The Group has established the CAC 40 futures
contract as the second most traded national index in Europe, with an
equivalent of €6.2 billion in nominal value on an average daily basis.
The milling wheat contracts which are the leading wheat derivatives
in continental Europe as well as rapeseed commodity contracts
continue to be included in recognised commodity benchmarks
such as the S&P World Commodity Index and Rogers International
Commodity indices.

Euronext operates an important bond market in Europe with
approximately 40,000 corporate, financial institutions and
government bonds listed on its markets and an internationally
recognised derivatives platform.

Optig®

Euronextis currently upgrading its core trading platform with Optiqg, a
new enhanced, multi-market trading platform, providing customers
with maximum flexibility, simplified and harmonized messaging
as well as high performance and stability. Optiq combines latest
technologies with in-house expertise.

Optiq is being rolled out across the Euronext markets to replace
the Euronext Universal Trading Platform (“UTP”) in a phased
implementation process. Market data have been managed through
Optig for both cash and derivatives since July 2017, already
delivering massive benefits to the clients’ community. In April and
June 2018, Optiq® trading engine went live for fixed income and
cash markets, with impressive stability and performance. Optiq®
for derivatives trading is expected to be delivered during the course
of 2019.

Some of the third party exchange using UTP or former Euronext
solutions have already started projects to migrate to Optig. Other
exchanges and market operators have also shown interest in this
best of breed solution.

“United in Diversity” with an Open Federal Model

Euronext is the only pan-European exchange operating across
multiple jurisdictions with a harmonised regulatory framework,
a Single Order Book for its exchanges in Amsterdam, Brussels,
London and Paris and a single trading platform offering access
to all markets through a single connection. The Single Order Book
consolidates liquidity in each multi-listed security to tighten spreads
and increase market depth and achieves optimal price formation.
Issuers listing on more than one of the Group’s markets benefit from
enhanced visibility, qualification for inclusion in more local indices
and greater exposure for their volumes and prices.
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The Group has generated sustainable and diversified cash flows
across institutional, high frequency and algorithmic trading, own
account, agency brokerage and retail client classes. The Single Order
Book model and pan-European technology are key to Euronext’s
unique federal market structure. This structure enables the Company
to integrate its constituent markets while they remain subject to
regulation by national regulators. As a reminder, Euronext is also
regulated by a college of regulators at Group level (see section 1.4.2).

1.3.3 LISTING

1.3.3.1

The Group's issuer base is diverse, comprised of nearly
1,300 companies from within its home markets as well as
elsewhere in Europe, and internationally, spanning ten sectors by
industry classification benchmark. Euronext’'s corporate issuers
differ in size and represent a combined market capitalisation of
€3.4 trillion. Euronext’s listing franchise includes around 300 large
cap companies (companies with a market capitalisation above
€1 billion) and 1,000 small & mid capitalisation companies as at
31 December 2018.

Euronext’s listed issuers account for 52% of EURO STOXX
50 component securities, and 24% of EURO STOXX 600 component
securities at the end of December 2018. In addition, since the
acquisition of the Irish Stock Exchange in March 2018 (operating
as Euronext Dublin), Euronext is now the number one venue
of choice for the listing of bonds globally, with approximately
40,000 corporate, financial institutions and government bonds and
money market instruments, representing almost 4,000 issuers from
over 90 jurisdictions listed on Euronext’'s markets.

Listing - Products and Services

Euronext issuers are also eligible to a family of leading index
products in each of its national markets including the AEX® in the
Netherlands, BEL 20® in Belgium, CAC 40 in France, ISEQ® in Ireland
and PSI 20® in Portugal. Euronext’s family of index products provides
investors and issuers with benchmarks enabling them to measure
and trade the performance of key segments and strategies. The
Group also offers extensive trading opportunities to investors,
including in particular single stock derivatives on the underlying
securities listed on its markets.

Euronext offers issuers an established and credible financial
marketplace for their capital market needs. In order to attract
issuers to Euronext’s marketplace and maintain relationships with
clients (existing issuers, prospects and other stakeholders) the
Company undertakes outreach initiatives through direct prospecting
and continuous client interaction. In addition, Euronext organises
dedicated events for prospects, issuers and investors aimed at
improving and facilitating access to capital and promoting its
markets on an international and national level.
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A market for each step of a company growth

MAIN MARKETS

.
Main Securities Market (MSM) [

EU regulated markets suited to
larger companies with substantial
financing requirements

-

e
7

TRANSATLANTIC MARKET .

7

Atlantic Securities Market (ASM)

Non EU regulated market suited to US
listed companies seeking to access euro
pools of capital

Euronext operates different kinds of markets according to the needs
and stages of growth of each company. They enable corporate clients
in different stages of their development, whether early stage growth
companies or more established businesses, to access a broad range
of investors and provide access to capital.

Main markets: Euronext and MSM

Euronext in Amsterdam, Brussels, Lisbon, London and Paris and
Main Securities Market (MSM) in Dublin are European regulated
markets under MiFID suited to large companies with substantial
financing requirements. These main markets give access to a large
range of international investors and the possibility of inclusion
in well-known European indices. Euronext and MSM list a wide
variety of securities, including domestic and international equity
securities, convertible bonds, debt securities (including corporate
and government bonds), structured products (including warrants
and certificates and structured notes), ETFs, open-ended and closed-
ended investment funds.

Euronext is segmented according to market capitalization:

m compartment A: companies with a market capitalization of more
than €1 billion;

m compartment B: companies valued between €150 million and
€1 billion;

m compartment C: companies with a market capitalization of less
than €150 million.

In 2019, MSM will become Euronext Dublin and form part of the
Euronext harmonized rulebook.
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NEXT
STEP
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Enterprise Securities Market (ESM)

Non EU regulated markets suited
to high growth companies in earlier
stages of development

Junior markets: Euronext Growth, ESM and Euronext
Access

Euronext Growth and Euronext Access, both operating in Brussels,
Lisbon and Paris as well as Enterprise Securities Market (ESM) in
Dublin are MTFs within the meaning of MiFID.

Euronext Growth and ESM are dedicated to fast-growing small and
mid-caps willing to raise funds to finance their growth. They offer
lighter requirements than Euronext’s regulated markets while giving
access to a significant number of European investors focused on
SMEs. Listed companies have greater flexibility in their choice of
accounting standards and are subject to less extensive post-listing
reporting requirements than companies listed on regulated markets.
Euronext Growth lists a wide variety of securities, including domestic
and international equity securities, convertible bonds and corporate
bonds. In 2019, ESM will become Euronext Growth Dublin and form
part of the harmonized rulebook.

Euronext Access markets are designed especially for start-ups
and SMEs that wish to join a stock exchange to finance growth
and gain the reputational advantages of listing but do not meet the
criteria for admission to Euronext’s regulated markets, Euronext
Growth and ESM. This market is open to any company, regardless
of size, performance, maturity or industry. Corporate bonds and
structured products are also traded on Euronext Access. Euronext
Access+ is a special compartment of Euronext Access tailored to
the needs of start-ups and SMEs. Opened in 2017, Euronext Access+
helps them make a smooth transition and acclimatization to other
Euronext markets, notably in terms of investor communications
and transparency. This new compartment, which is part of Euronext
Access, is a springboard to other Euronext markets.
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Other Markets

Euronext also offers alternative markets such as: 1) Trading Facility,
a MTF in Belgium, 2) Euronext Expert Market, based in Brussels,
which enables negotiation of prices for unlisted products — such
as shares, real estate certificates notes and bonds — once a week,
3) Global Exchange Market (GEM), a multilateral trading facility
based in Dublin, for listing debt securities aimed at professional
investors and investment funds, which is the largest MTF listing
venue in Europe, with over 17,000 bonds and 1,200 investment
funds classes listed and 4) Atlantic Securities Market (ASM), a MTF
in Dublin suited to US listed companies seeking to access euro
pools of capital.

Added-Value Services for Issuers

Euronext provides to its issuers a range of services including:

Advocacy Role

Euronext provides advocacy to represent the interests of corporate
client companies at the level of Euronext as well as at national and
European levels for specific issues related to financial markets.
As part of this, Euronext regularly communicates with its issuers
and investor relations organisations, organises issuer committees
and participates in consultations with regulatory bodies on a wide
range of topics.

ExpertLine

ExpertLine is a team of market professionals who provide issuers
with feedback on real-time events that may affect their share
price. ExpertLine also acts as a first port of call for issuers
listed on all Euronext’s markets, listing sponsors and other
intermediaries, and the team develops and provides issuers with
a suite of services such as the Connect web portal that Euronext
constantly enriches.

Connect

Companies listed on Euronext markets have access to Connect, a
secure web portal that provides issuers with market intelligence.
Connect is also a publication tool, allowing issuers to upload and
publish press releases, maintain their financial calendar and
update their company’s profile on Euronext’s website. In 2018,
Euronext has been developing a new version of Connect with
upgraded content which has been made available in January 2019.

Education and Networking

Euronext informs and educates issuers on various topics including
recent developments in its markets, new regulatory and legal
developments, compliance, governance, social responsibility
investments as well as new products and services through
workshops and conferences organised during the year.

In particular Euronext has developed three pre IPO programmes
to help companies familiarize themselves with capital markets:

m TechShare, a free educational and mentoring programme to help
Tech SMEs to grow their business;
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m FamilyShare, a free training programme dedicated to
enlightening family businesses on the financing solutions
offered by the stock exchange;

m #IPOready, a programme designed to provide Irish high-growth
companies with a deep understanding of capital markets, fund
raising options and the IPO process.

Listing Venue of Choice for SMEs

With markets tailored to the needs of medium-sized companies
and a presence in ten countries, Euronext is the listing venue
of choice for small and mid-caps in Europe. Since 2014, around
150 SMEs have listed on Euronext markets. As of 31 December
2018, 737 SMEs are listed on Euronext markets representing a
total market capitalization of €115 billion.

Over the past few years, Euronext been offering small and
medium companies financing solutions according to their profile
and Euronext has also developed initiatives primarily on the Tech
sector and family businesses.

Boosting the Financing of the Tech Sector

Regulated market
©® Salespresence

Euronext is the leading European platform for fast-growing
technology companies. Since 2014, close to 115 tech companies
have gone public on Euronext markets, choosing Euronext to
facilitate and support their strategic growth ambitions. Euronext’s
pan-European platform spans a vast range of subsectors with
425 listed tech companies in Digital Services, Cleantech, Biotech,
Medtech, TMT, Software, IT Consulting and Technology Hardware.
These companies represent a total market capitalization close to
€445 billion.
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ALL TECH SECTORS ARE REPRESENTED ON EURONEXT
MARKETS (NUMBER OF ISSUERS BY SECTOR)

50

Telecom, Media
& Entertainment 47
/ Cleantech

bh

Software —

2] —
IT Consulting \ ’
/ \
40

58

Electronics
& Hardware

— 89

Life Science

Digital Services

In September 2015, Euronext launched TechShare to help companies
reach the next stage of development. TechShare is a 10-month
educational and mentoring programme aimed at familiarizing CEOs
of Tech companies with the financial markets. From 2015 to 2017,
the programme has been run in France, Belgium, the Netherlands
and Portugal with 145 participants of which already 4 alumni listed
on Euronext: Osmozis, Balyo, Theranexus and Oxatis.

In September 2018, the programme opened in 4 new countries,
welcoming Tech companies from Germany, Switzerland, Italy and
Spain. In 2018, 135 companies from 8 European countries joined
the programme, compared to 30 in 2015. The participants are
Tech companies from a wide variety of sectors, including Biotech,
software, Medtech, electronics, hardware, Cleantech, e-commerce
and fintech.

Supporting Family-Owned Companies

Euronext has attracted an important community of family-owned
companies, composed of 244 issuers representing a total market
capitalization close to €944 billion, including 162 SMEs.

In 2017, Euronext launched FamilyShare, a dedicated programme
offering support and coaching to unlisted family businesses. The
programme has been set up across the four Euronext domestic
markets and tailored to the specific needs of each country. This
unique pan-European initiative is designed to familiarise family-
owned businesses with capital markets, both equity and bonds,
giving them the information they need to bring their companies
to the market. In June 2018, Cogelec was the first IPO from the
FamilyShare programme raising €39 million on Euronext Paris.

Family-owned companies also benefit from increased assistance in
several areas. This includes European roadshows to meet investors,
improved financial analysis coverage through the Morningstar
programme and Euronext Family Business index®, a new European
index with ninety component companies in the four countries
covered by Euronext.
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1.3.3.2 Listing - Recent Developments

Market Activity in 2018

Euronext’s markets in 2018 provided financing to the real economy
with nearly €1,000 billion raised on its markets in equity and debt
financing through securities admitted to trading as of 31 December
2018, despite challenging market conditions across Europe. In
particular, a large amount of new listings were postponed or
cancelled in Europe, around 6 times more than in 2017. In total
in 2018, Euronext welcomed 33 new listings — of which 27 were SMEs
- raising a total of €3.6 billion across all markets with a combined
market capitalization of €15.1 billion. The Tech sector was once again
the top sector on Euronext markets representing more than 70% of
new listings. Adyen joined Euronext as the largest tech unicorn-IPO
in Europe in the last five years, based on market capitalization at
opening, and the largest tech IPO on Euronext’'s markets. Euronext
also welcomed the largest cleantech IPO in Europe in 2018 with
the listing of Neoen in Paris. The Company which is the first French
unicorn specialized in renewable energies reached a market cap of
€1.4 billion on the day of listing.

In addition, €61 billion was raised in follow-on equity and €936 billion
was raised on Euronext in bonds including an addition of over
12,000 bond listings in 2018 coming from Euronext Dublin. Notable
listings highlight the Company’s strength in key jurisdictions such as
Scandinavia, the Mediterranean and the Middle East and include AB
Svensk Exportkredit, Bankia and Abu Dhabi Investment Bank, along
with global financial institutions including Morgan Stanley, HSBC and
Santander. There are over 5,100 funds classes listed on Euronext
Dublin and work is currently underway on integrating funds listings
on the Euronext Fund Services Amsterdam and Paris offerings. 2018
also marked a good year for corporate green bond issues with a total
of €8.7 billion raised.

Euronext - Total money raised (€bn)

2016 585
2017 789
2018 1,000

Significant Contribution of Euronext Dublin
to the Listing Activity

Following the acquisition of the Irish Stock Exchange (now Euronext
Dublin) in March 2018, Euronext is positioned to significantly expand
its debt and funds offerings. It enables the Company to combine a
world leading primary listing venue with market leading secondary
trading technology to deliver a full service on-exchange solution to
debt issuers and investment funds. At the end of December 2018,
over 34,000 debt securities and 5,100 investment funds classes
were listed on Euronext Dublin.

In addition, the acquisition has added 51 Dublin-listed equities to the
Euronext markets and expanded the active base of member firms.
Euronext Dublin’s position as an English-speaking, common law
jurisdiction also provides the Company with an enhanced foothold
within the US and UK capital markets.

www.euronext.com



European Tech SMEs initiative

Euronext decided in 2017 to expand outside its core markets and
opened local offices in four European countries identified as high-
potential ecosystems —in Germany, Switzerland, Italy and Spain - to
assist tech companies in scaling up their business through capital
markets. Euronext had identified the four target countries to set up
and roll-out dedicated offers to attract tech companies on Euronext
markets with the aim to become the leading exchange for European
tech SMEs in continental Europe.

With 355 listed tech SMEs and mid-cap firms representing a total
market capitalization close to €56 billion, Euronext is already the
leading listing venue in continental Europe for technology stocks.
With the expertise of operating markets in five European countries —
in Belgium, France, Ireland, the Netherlands and Portugal, Euronext
believes that it can propose its services to new innovative SMEs in
the four target countries. In order to build networks of partners and
attract the best tech companies in Germany, Switzerland, Italy and
Spain, Euronext has set up a salesforce of five experienced FTEs on
the ground to sell its unique value proposition for the tech sector.
Since the opening of the offices, Euronext welcomed on its markets
7 new companies from these countries.

In 2018, Euronext deployed three new initiatives dedicated to
European tech SMEs to support its commercial effort:

m Post-listing Advisory: following their listing, companies can benefit
from in-house market intelligence services for six months to help
them develop a better understanding of their investor base;

m Trade & Leverage: newly listed companies based in the new
countries will benefit from investor access, including equity
research, investor events and investor relations solutions
provided by 10 selected European market providers;

m TechShare: private tech SMEs can join the pre-IPO programme of
Euronext launched in 2015 which has been expanded in the four
new countries, with the recruitment of 56 tech companies and
35 partners from the financial industry (see above).

In 2018, 6 companies coming from the Tech SMEs initiative countries
listed on Euronext.

Corporate Services

Euronext Corporate Services was launched in 2016 as part of the
“Agility for Growth” plan, with the ambition to help companies and
organisations to be more efficient. Euronext Corporate Services
provides a suite of technology and advisory solutions in relation
to investor relations, communication, governance and compliance.
Euronext Corporate Services serves more than 1,800 clients of
which 450 are listed companies, 900 private groups and 450
public organisations. When it comes to listed companies, Euronext
Corporate Services help them make the most effective use of capital
markets, from blue-chip large caps to SMEs, located across all
Euronext markets and beyond (Sweden, UK, Germany, ltaly, etc.).

Euronext Corporate Services offers a unique and comprehensive
value proposition articulated around four main pillars:

i. Investor Relations:

= taitlor-made advisory, market intelligence and decision making
analytics for listed companies,

= complete and intuitive investor relationship management and
targeting platform,
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= flexible and customized market data components for investor
relations websites of listed companies;

ii. Communication: Comprehensive range of webcast, webinar
and conference call services for all types corporate events
(investor relations, internal communication, marketing,
training, etc.);

iii. Governance: Digital board portal solution help organisations
secure their board meetings and streamline their decision-
making processes;

iv. Compliance: Innovative solution to automate the management
of insider lists in a way that both saves time and ensures
compliance with the requirements of the Market Abuse
Regulation.

This offering has been built through a combination of organic
developments and acquisitions. To achieve its ambition, Euronext
has acquired four companies providing innovative solutions for
corporates:

m Company Webcast (51% stake acquisition), a Dutch leading
company specialized in professional webcast and webinar
services;

= IR.Manager (100% stake acquisition), a London-based provider of
investor relations workflow and targeting tools;

= iBabs (now renamed Skope) (60% stake acquisition), a Dutch
leading provider of dematerialized and secured board portal
solutions for corporate and public organizations;

= InsiderLog (80% stake acquisition), a Swedish leading provider
of an insider list management solution, in compliance with the
Market Abuse Regulation.

1.3.4 CASH, DERIVATIVES AND SPOT FX
MARKETS
1.3.4.1 Cash, Derivatives and Spot FX Markets -

Products and Services

Euronext provides multiple marketplaces for investors, broker-
dealers and other market participants to meet directly to buy and
sell cash equities, fixed income securities and ETPs. One of the
primary functions of the Group’s markets is to ensure that orders
to purchase and sell securities are executed in a reliable, orderly,
liquid and efficient manner. Order execution occurs through a variety
of means and Euronext seeks to continue to develop additional and
more efficient trading processes.

Cash Trading

Equities

The Company is the market leader in cash equity trading in its five
home markets of Belgium, France, Ireland, the Netherlands and
Portugal. Over 2018, Euronext market share on cash equity trading
averaged 66.1% and the Company had a strong blue chip issuer
presence, with twenty six issuers included in the EURO STOXX 50
stock index and 144 issuers listed on the EURO STOXX 600 benchmark
index. Euronext is ranked first in Europe as measured by domestic
market capitalisation and second by average monthly equity trading
value, excluding BATS-Chi-X. In addition, the Group has a solid ETF
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trading franchise based on the listing of 1,150 ETFs in its markets.
In 2018, total Euronext transaction value on equity was €1,969 billion,
up +8.3% from €1,819 billion in 2017 and compared to €1,643 billion
in 2016. In Equities, Euronext outperforms peer exchanges in yield
extraction while maintaining high market share. This is achieved
through a combination of superior execution quality, sophisticated
liquidity schemes and advanced pricing segmentation. Euronext
offers a compelling value proposition across the transaction chain,
from blue chips to small companies, with tailored market models to
maximise the depth and quality of liquidity available for trading those
companies in the secondary market.

Since the introduction of new European Union legislation in 2007,
via MiFID, competition for share trading has been intense. Yet
Euronext has been successful in maintaining market share above
60% throughout the past decade demonstrating the resilience in its
core business. Euronext’s product, pricing and client strategy and the
execution thereof are vital to maintain the high quality of execution
and broad diversity of clients active on Euronext’s markets.

Euronext operates equity markets of which the main financial
instruments are shares. Shares are any share of capital stock or any
other equity securities issued by a corporation or other incorporated
business enterprise.

Since 2017, in Equities, Euronext’s competitive position has been
enhanced due to evolution in the blue chip liquidity scheme, a new
fee scheme for non-member proprietary flow, a new best execution
service for retail investors (Best of Book) and new incentives
embedded in the agency tariff to attract incremental flow from trading
members. Euronext has re-positioned both the equity and warrants
business to ensure its offering to local members in Euronext’'s home
markets is attractive and that flow from the local client community
is either retained or repatriated. These initiatives enable Euronext to
continue enhancing execution quality available on Euronext’s markets
which is key to add value to clients and to compete effectively.

Best of Book Service for Retail Best Execution

In 2017, Euronext kept improving its new best execution service for
retail orders. In partnership with dedicated liquidity providers, Best
of Book offers price improvement in the central order book for retail
brokers. This helps ensure best execution for brokers executing
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orders on behalf of retail clients, in a way that ensures compliance
and that the end investor achieves an optimum result. The service
promotes and strengthens the diversity of Euronext’'s order book to
the benefit of the whole market.

Omega Fee Scheme for Non-Member Proprietary Flow

In 2016, Euronext launched a new pilot fee scheme for non-member
proprietary trading flow. Non-member proprietary firms wishing
to participate in the Omega pilot scheme enter into a tripartite
arrangement with Euronext and the member intermediary. This
scheme provides non-member firms with improved value when
trading on Euronext markets while promoting and strengthening the
diversity of Euronext’s order book to the benefit of the whole market.

Fixed Income

Euronext operates bond trading on its regulated market with a
particular focus on the retail market. Over 100 members trade
5,600 corporate, financial institutions and government listed bonds,
representing a monthly turnover of approximately €0.5 billion.

Euronext Block

Euronext Block is a new trading venue designed to be compliant
with MiFID Il regulations. It is designed to facilitate the execution of
algorithmically generated block trades on over 3,000 pan-European
stocks. The platform has connected its first wave of brokers and
is becoming a significant centre of liquidity in Europe in terms of
volumes, market quality and in sourcing unique liquidity. Euronext
Block is an MTF regulated by the FCA and cleared by the European
Central Counterparty ‘EuroCCP".

Euronext developed a new pan-European service to upgrade the
Smartpool product, and capture large institutional trading interests in
which Euronext rarely participated. Euronext launched an innovative
platform, Euronext Block, for block trading that empowers clients
to seek liquidity while controlling the level of information disclosed
to the market which could otherwise negatively impact their own
performance. Growth in electronic block trading is emerging as a
sustainable trend and Euronext’'s main competitors are also focused
on the space. Euronext’s approach however is unique and garnering
significant support among market participants.

3 Participant orders
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Exchange Traded Funds

Euronext offers the ETF community a comprehensive solution
for multi-national listing and trading in ETFs and investments,
within Euronext’'s Single Order Book. Euronext's ETF markets
are supported by robust market infrastructure where product
supply and demand meet within a framework of deep liquidity and
advanced price formation. Euronext develops relations not only with
issuers, but also with liquidity providers, intermediaries, investors,
regulators and others in the ETF community to understand their
challenges and needs, providing strong alignment with Euronext'’s
business goals and a strong foundation to co-create new products
to accelerate growth in the ETF industry with the support of its
major participants.

Euronext’s client alignment is demonstrated by Euronext winning
ETF Express award during 2018, and in early 2019 - the fourth
time in a row, being consistently recognised as the Best European
Exchange for Listing ETFs. This award is voted for by Euronext’'s
clients.

A

etfexpress

AWARD WINNER 2018

etfexpress
AWARDS 2018

Agility for Growth, Pan-European ETF MTF

Euronext intends to become the one-stop-shop pan-European ETF
platform with an ambition to be the #1 trading venue for ETFs in
Europe. Launching an MTF for ETF trading is one of Euronext’s
selected growth initiatives within Euronext’s Agility for Growth
strategy. The European ETF market is fragmented and opaque with
approximately 70% of trading volume in the region taking place
off-exchange. Yet ETFs are increasingly popular among both retail
and institutional investors, as the trend for passive investing grows
and there is ever increasing focus on investing and managing
risk efficiently. Euronext is building a dedicated pan-European
platform for ETF trading, with unique features seeking to attract
volume into an exchange environment promoting transparency,
improving efficiency and deepening liquidity. Euronext’'s mission
is to accelerate the growth of the ETF industry in Europe to
the benefit of end investors and intermediaries, Euronext has
strong support from a diverse set of stakeholders within the ETF
community. It is going to be live in 2019.

Open Ended Investment Funds

Euronext’s Fund Services offer asset managers ways to achieve
better operational efficiency and enhance asset gathering
opportunities. By engaging in active discussions with key
stakeholders, the Company believes its offering is a relevant choice
for any issuer considering fund distribution in Europe.
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The services include:

m Euronext Fund Service Amsterdam, first launched in 2007, which
enables Fund Managers to further extend the geographic reach
of their funds across Europe and will include a broader choice
of trading solutions;

m Euronext Fund Service Paris, launched in May 2017, which is
a complementary cutting-edge offer providing a global access
to the funds universe, in order to meet the requirements for
modern and automated solutions. This service is available for
both UCITS funds and AIF (Alternative Investment Funds), and
orders will be placed at Net Asset Value (NAV) in euros.

EFS enables both local and global asset managers to list their
funds (whether large or small) on Euronext’s regulated platform,
enhancing the profile of the funds and helping to attract higher
levels of investment into those funds. The service has been
designed in close co-operation with the industry and there is
strong demand from many French issuers as well as interest from
outside France. As of 31 December, there were already 101 funds
admitted to trading. This is an important initiative to help service
the distribution needs of asset managers and match those with
investor appetite.

Warrants and Certificates

Euronext operates a retail Structured Products business
across its continental European franchise, servicing the needs
of retail investors via intermediary service provision, namely
listing warrants, certificates and structured notes, developing
Euronext’'s market model for high quality liquidity provision and
ensuring execution by retail brokers is cost efficient. Euronext
develops relationships with its issuers not only to expand their
usage of existing tailored services but also to create new and
innovative services for operational efficiency and business
expansion.

Cash Market Structure and Functionality

Cash trading on Euronext’s markets has successfully migrated to
the new proprietary strategic architecture Optiq® in June 2018.
The Group's trading rules provide for an order-driven market
using an open electronic central order book for each traded
security, various order types and automatic order matching and
a guarantee of full anonymity both for orders and trades. While
the core trading system is built on this order-driven principle, the
flexibility of Euronext’s technology enables Euronext to develop
different types of matching algorithms and functionalities to suit
the different price formation mechanisms that exist amongst the
different cash asset classes and to cater for different market
participant needs. For example, Euronext continued to develop
its best execution service for retail investors, Best of Book, which
brings retail brokers an additional layer of liquidity specifically
aimed at offering price improvement for retail order flow. This
service is integrated into Euronext’s central order book enabling
members to interact with this liquidity through the same
connection as for the core market. As at year end, all of Euronext’s
retail brokers had signed up for the service.
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The Company also operates a sophisticated liquidity provider
program for blue chips and liquid mid cap equities which aims at
ensuring Euronext offers superior market quality. Euronext’s equity
markets continue to yield the best market quality metrics amongst
its competitors. These metrics include, amongst others, spread,
market depth, best price setting and presence time at the best bid
and offer spread. The program encompasses both a presence time
obligation at the best bid and offer spread and a minimum passive
volume obligation. This volume obligation is of particular interest as,
in combination with the presence time obligation, it creates order
persistence and therefore increases probability of execution. In a
fragmented trading environment, market quality metrics are actively
used by trading firms as decision making parameters embedded in
their order routing systems and therefore contribute to maintaining
Euronext's market share.

Cash Market Trading Members

As at 31 December 2018, Euronext had 168 direct trading members
on its cash business, compared to 147 members as at 31 December
2017, 205 members as at 31 December 2016 and 213 members
as at 31 December 2015, up in 2018 due to member preparing
for Brexit and open new membership in the continent as well as
the arrival of 6 new members in Dublin. The Group has a diverse
member base, with a deep presence in its four domestic markets
and a strong international client base in London, which accounts
for approximately two-third of equity trading volumes. A continued
environment of increased regulation, tighter margins and capital
constraints will require cost reduction and sustainable reform from
most of Euronext’s client base, therefore driving consolidation of
continental tier three banks and brokers.

Cash Trading Average Daily Volume by Geographic Origin
of Customers

The average daily volume on Euronext’s cash trading markets for
the last twelve months ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
€8.1 billion (single counted).

HISTORICAL AVERAGE DAILY VOLUMES (€ MILLION).
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(1) All Euronext securities.
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The table below shows the proportion of Euronext’'s customer base
by geographic origin (location of worldwide headquarters) using
the Company’s cash markets for the last twelve months ended
31 December 2018.
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Derivatives Trading

Euronext is a leading pan-European derivatives trading venue
with trading activities across financial and commodity derivatives
products.

Euronext offers financial derivatives trading in its markets in
Amsterdam, Brussels, Lisbon and Paris, and, as of 31 December
2018, was the second largest market in equity index futures and
the second largest in equity index options in Europe in number of
contracts. Euronext offers local markets access to the trading of
futures and options based on global equities, dividends, local market
indices including the AEX®, BEL20®, CAC 40®, PSI20® and established
pan-European equity indices such as FTSEurofirst and FTSE EPRA/
NAREIT real estate indices. Euronext is also innovating in the
derivatives space notably with the launch in Q4 2018 of the first Total
Return Future (TRF) on a national benchmark, the CAC 40® Index.

Euronext offers commodity derivatives trading with futures and
options based on milling wheat, corn and rapeseed, and futures on
dairy products, wood pellets, and UAN 30 fertiliser. The Group is
the leading agricultural commodity franchise in Europe and its core
commodity contracts have long been relied upon as trusted global
and European benchmarks.

In 2018, the notional value of the derivatives traded on Euronext's
derivatives markets was €3.8 trillion, equivalent to an average of
€15.7 billion per day.

Euronext’s mission: innovation, agility, strengthening Euronext'’s core.

Euronext’s derivatives team has a mission to bring innovation and
agility to the derivatives markets. Since Euronext’s IPO in June 2014,
Euronext focused on researching and developing new derivatives
products together with its client community. These are now beginning
to come to market and Euronext is excited about expanding its
capabilities and making its business work better for Euronext’s
customers.

Euronext is pursuing the expansion of its commodity derivatives
strategy along three axes:

1. focus on the core for European agricultural markets with EIM, new
delivery points in corn and New Market Participants programme;

2. innovation and diversification with cash settled and Paris real
estate;

3. enhanced client centric approach.

NUMBER OF CONTRACTS TRADED (LOTS IN MILLION)
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993
892 ‘ 908 900 ‘ ‘ " ‘
102017 202017 302017 402017 102018 202018 302018 402018

Financial Derivatives

Equity Products: Versatility And Leverage

Equity options and futures enable holders to hedge against, or take
position on, changes in the underlying share. More than 241 equity
options and over 375 equity futures can be traded on Euronext,
making the Company one of the leading markets for equity
derivatives trading. Equity options trading has historically been
particularly active in Amsterdam due to high retail participation.

Equity Index Products: Hedge Against Fluctuations

in The European Equity Market

Equity index derivatives allow holders to hedge against, or take
position on, changes in the future level of a particular index, the
investor paying or receiving a cash sum representing its loss or gain
on the future or option. Euronext’s equity index derivatives allow
customers to hedge against fluctuations in a range of European stock
market indices and the European equity market as a whole, and many
are available as weekly or daily contracts as well as the more usual
monthly contracts.

Euronext’s flagship equity index products include the CAC 40®
index futures contract, which is the second most traded national
index future in Europe, in terms of number of contracts traded,
and the AEX® Index options contract, which is one of the most
on-exchange traded national index options in Europe. Euronext’s
mini index derivatives (‘minis’) allow investors to follow the same
investment strategies but with less initial margin or a smaller
trading amount.

Dividend Products: A New and Rapidly Growing Asset Class
Dividend index futures and stock dividend futures allow holders
to hedge against, or take position on, changes in the dividend of a
particular index or underlying share. Euronext’s flagship dividend
products include the CAC 40° dividend index futures, which is one
of the most traded dividend index futures in Europe and more than
290 Single Stock Dividend Futures (including 56 contracts on US
names), making up the broadest offering in Europe.

Total Return Product: A New Sophisticated Future

The Total Return Future (TRF) on the CAC 40°® Index launched in
October 2018 has been developed by Euronext in order to meet
clients’ need for a listed solution to trade total return swaps. With
increased capital requirements being imposed by Basel lll and EMIR,
the new total return future contract offers strong netting advantages
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while providing a transparent and secure trading environment to
access the implied equity repo rate on the constituents of the CAC 40
Index. Euronext is the first Exchange to launch a TRF on a national
benchmark.

Commodity Derivatives

Euronext is a leading provider of agricultural commodity
derivatives with several of the Company’s contracts established
as global price benchmarks for the international commercial and
financial community. Volumes have grown strongly in recent years
as commercials and investors alike increasingly seek to hedge
their risks or use commodities to help diversify their portfolios.

The average daily volume of the flagship milling wheat futures
contract remained stable and reached a level of more than
42,000 lots traded on a daily basis, representing the equivalent of
2.1 million tons of wheat or 3.3 times the milling wheat quality EU
production traded over the course of one year. The Rapeseed futures
contract volume suffered from adverse physical market conditions
with a significant 16% drop in volumes year on, as the industry
suffers from uncertainties regarding biofuels. The corn contract
gained some renewed traction on the back of the announcement
of the new Dunkirk and Ghent delivery silos, which should capture
import flows besides French bay export volumes. These futures
contracts have obtained international recognition status, both of
which have been included in the main global commodity indices
(S&P World Commodity Index, Rogers International Commodity
index), making them the first non-U.S. grains contracts to be
included in these global indices.

The commodity team has rolled out its new strategy in 2018 which
is articulated around:

m focus on building our existing core contracts to their full potential
and, in particular, leveraging on the MATIF brand for grains and
oilseeds. EIM with trade finance and repos along with location
swaps will become a core element of the agricultural franchise
and generate growing revenue streams over the next 3-5 years.
It will protect our physically delivered contracts, which have
been suffering over the last few years from being exposed as
the only major player without a digital contract delivery system;

m Cash Settled platform will allow the franchise to extend from the
current 2 %2 product offering and enable listing and trading of
a number of desired price reference contracts, as simpler cash
settled products when appropriate (e.g. when physical delivery
is not a key or desired pricing mechanism);

m monitor and capture opportunity to build traction and liquidity
in our new contracts launched since 2014;

= monitoring of opportunities for non-organic growth, blockchain
applications linked to EIM, etc.

Derivatives Trading Members

Trading members in Euronext’s derivative markets are either
dealers, brokers or both. Their activities range from retail
broking, investment banking, dealing, algorithmic and high
frequency trading to international physical trading. The Group's

(1) Market share is measured against CBOE FX; EBS; FXALL.

* EURONEXT 2018 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

client base comprises 158 direct trading members (of which
72 are both cash and derivatives and 79 are commodities
trading members) as of 31 December 2018 and is significantly
diversified both in terms of types of clients and geographic
coverage. Trading members can also become market makers
or liquidity providers, which is crucial to the good functioning
of the price formation mechanism for derivative instruments. In
such cases, the parties enter into an agreement with Euronext,
specifying their obligations in terms of displayed liquidity and
spreads. Market makers and liquidity providers are able to place
several orders at the same time through the use of mass quotes,
allowing these trading members to send buy and sell orders
for many contract months using only one message, leading to
optimal efficiency in updating Euronext’s full range of derivatives
prices in a timely manner.

Derivatives Average Daily Volume by Geographic Origin

The average daily volume on Euronext’'s derivatives markets
for the last twelve months ended 31 December 2018 reached
585,310 contracts representing a total open interest exceeding
14.6 million contracts at the end of December 2018.

The table below shows the proportion of Euronext’'s customer base
by geographic origin (location of worldwide headquarters) using
derivatives listed on its markets for the last twelve months ended
31 December 2018.
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Spot FX Trading

Building on the successful acquisition of FastMatch in August 2017
- an Electronic Communication Network (“ECN") in the spot Foreign
Exchange (“FX") market with leading-edge technology, access to
a large, transparent and diversified pool of liquidity at unrivalled
speed and capacity, Euronext continued to and expand the business
successfully, stabilizing and increasing market share in Spot FX
whilst launching new and innovative products such as FastMatch’s
FX Tape a centralized streaming service that provides real-time last
trade data to all subscribing market participants. "
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1.3.4.2 Cash, Derivatives and Spot FX Markets -
Recent Developments

Cash Trading

Optiq®

In 2018, Euronext rolled out its new Optiq trading platform. Optiq is a
new enhanced, multi-market trading platform, providing customers
with maximum flexibility, simplified and harmonized messaging as
well as high performance and stability. This new platform leverage
on the latest technology to provide our members with high reliability
as well as enhanced throughput and more predictable latency.

Advanced Pricing Strategy

During 2018, Euronext continued to optimize its pricing strategy
to respond to the financial markets environment in post-Mifid Il
world. Specific fees were introduced for retail liquidity provisions,
adjustments and alignments made to the flagship liquidity
programme on Euronext Central Order Book.

New Functionality

The User choice model introduces the ability for customers to
elect EuroCCP as their “User Choice CCP" with the objective to
offer cost reduction to customers. Clients will be able to reduce
their clearing costs through higher degree of netting efficiencies,
hence with a positive influence on the Euronext Cash Market share.
Under this “User Choice” model, Guaranteed trades where both
sides of the transaction are undertaken by trading members
having both elected EuroCCP as their CCP of choice will be sent
for clearing to EuroCCP. In all other cases, the trades will continue
to be sent to LCH S.A.

(1) Market share is measured against CBOE FX; EBS; FXALL.
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Euronext Block: New Pan-European Block Trading Service
The first brokers connected in the course of the fourth quarter
of 2017 and the first trades have taken place on the platform,
delivering superior execution quality in sizes significantly above the
minimum thresholds defined by regulation. Member connectivity
will accelerate throughout 2019 and new functionalities will be
rolled out specifically for small and mid-cap trading.

Fixed Income Trading

In 2018, a new pilot scheme (Liquidity Distributor) has been
designed for specific members to publish marked up/aggregated
liquidity of Euronext order book on their trading systems and
distribution networks in order to increase matching opportunities
on Euronext markets; this scheme was green-lighted by Euronext's
College of regulators in 18 December and will be implemented
with a pilot memberin Q1°19. Another initiative kicked-off in 2018
is the inclusion of selected Dublin-listed bonds in Euronext order
book with a target implementation in 2019. In the post-MiFID Il
environment, Fixed Income Regulated Markets remain active
despite the low interest rate environment and the impact of the
end of the ECB QE in 18 December will be closely monitored.

Derivatives Trading

On the financial derivatives markets, Euronext continued to
reposition and expand its franchise. New products launched in 2018
included:

m eleven new Individual Equity Options, of which nine Spotlight
Options ?;

= two Single Stock Futures;
m three Single Stock Dividend Futures.

In the first half of 2018, Euronext delivered a number of
enhancements to its Request for Cross (RFC) trading facility for
equity and equity index options. The RFC is an innovative crossing
mechanism that aims to improve the efficiency of the price discovery
process by allowing members to cross against a client through an
open auction mechanism. Enhancements released in 2018 included
MiFID Il transparency, and updates to the uncrossing algorithm to
guarantee full execution of the client side of the trade. The RFC has
thereby become a true best execution trading facility for equity and
equity index options.

In October 2018, Euronext launched the Total Return Future (TRF)
on the CAC 40° Index. The TRF has been developed by Euronext
in order to meet clients’ need for a listed solution to trade total
return swaps. With increased capital requirements being imposed
by Basel lll and EMIR, the new total return future contract offers
strong netting advantages while providing a transparent and secure
trading environment to access the implied equity repo rate on the
constituents of the CAC 40 Index. Euronext is the first Exchange to
launch a TRF on a national benchmark.

(2) By 31 December 2018, Euronext offered a total of 42 options within the innovative ‘Spotlight’ segment. Two spotlight options have been promoted to the

regular segment.
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On commaodity derivatives, Euronext continued to expand its offering
with:

= Euronext Inventory Management (EIM)- mandatory for the creation
of storage certificates since May 2018;

m Extension of Corn delivery point to Eurosilo silo in Ghent signed
in June 2018 for 1%t delivery from November 2019;

= new pricing programmes to continue to attract new users to the
Euronext Commodity markets. The NMP (New Market Participant)
programme has been replaced with a progressive, three tiered
programme that will contribute to accelerate client diversification
and international growth.

1.3.5 ADVANCED DATA SERVICES "

1.3.5.1

Euronext's market data portfolio provides a wide range of data
products to the global investment community, including pre- and
post-trade market prices, indices, and reference data spanning
its Cash and Derivatives markets in Amsterdam, Brussels, Dublin,
Lisbon, London and Paris. The data is used by traders and investors
to make buy or sell decisions with confidence, and by issuers to
create new tradable products such as ETF’s. Euronext’s market data
clients range from the largest investment banks in the world to
individual investors trading from their front room.

Market Data - Products and Services

Euronext’'s market data business consists of two product and service
categories:

Real-Time Market Data

Euronext’s main data offering involves the distribution of real-time
market data. This data includes price, trade and order book data
on all instruments traded on the Company’s cash and derivatives
markets, as well as information about Euronext’s indices and trade
and transaction reports submitted via the APA and ARM services.
The data is marketed through different information products which
are packaged according to the type of instrument, the depth of the
information, and the type of customer. The data is disseminated
primarily via data vendors but also directly to financial institutions
and other service providers in the financial sector.

Almost 500 vendors currently disseminate Euronext market data to
approximately 126,500 screens in over 125 countries. During 2018,
Euronext continued to see an increase in the use of Euronext’s data
in automated trading applications, and a corresponding decrease
in the number of users viewing data on traditional trading screens.

Retail clients have access to data from Euronext’s markets through
the Euronext Market Data app, which now has over 48,000 registered
users. A chargeable premium version containing enhanced content
and functionality such as research, analytics and real-time data was
launched in the third quarter of 2018 and further enhancements
will follow in 2019.

In 2018, Euronext introduced MiFID Il compliant disaggregated data
packages and all clients have signed the new market data agreement

(1) Previously reported as Market Data & Indices.
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which incorporated changes required to ensure compliant usage of
the new data.

Euronext is also working with a number of innovative fintech and
data companies to create new analytic data packages and services
aimed at both retail and professional users.

Historical and Reference Data

In addition to real-time market data, Euronext also provides
daily summary, historical and analytical data services, as well as
reference and corporate action data services.

In 2018 Euronext launched an e commerce platform that allows
retail investors to buy data on-line directly from Euronext and will
launch further products via the platform in 2019 aimed at both
professional and retail investors.

1.3.5.2

Euronext owns and operates a leading benchmark and strategy
index franchise that measures different segments of the
Euronext and other global markets, including AEX®, BEL 20°,
CAC 40® and PSI 20®. The Company also creates new proprietary
indices generating added value for its market participants or to
provide measurement tools for all types of investment categories
regardless of listing venue. Euronext offers a fully customisable
index service which includes index calculation across equities,
commodities and currencies twenty three hours a day, five days a
week, with two end-of-day runs reflecting market close in Europe
and the Americas. Many of Euronext’s indices are licensed as the
basis for ETPs (including ETFs) and structured products.

Indices - Products and Services

In order to increase the revenue pool by penetrating the promising
structured products (SP) market, several initiatives have been
implemented over the last three years in order:

= to extend Index Solutions Offering, especially based on ESG
content;

m to improve Time to Market for index creation;
= to extend Clients Coverage.
As a result, Euronext index business:

= maintained a strong growth in 2018 while diversifying its
business model and source of revenues;

m built global commercial relationship and is now used by the
majority of the world’s top financial institutions;

m licensed the first CAC 40 ETF in China by signing an agreement
with Hua An one of the biggest Fund Managers in China .

As a stock exchange committed to sustainability, Euronext is now
well positioned to benefit from the increased integration of factor
and ESG criteria into the investment process and will continue
to extend over 2019 its ESG index offering thanks to its partners
expertise: Vigeo Eiris, CDP, Carbone 4 and Mirova/ISS-Oekom.

As of 31 December 2018, there were over 10,500 Euronext Traded
Products (ETPs) linked to Euronext indices listed on the Company’s
market. This is an all-time record and 16.5% above 2017.

www.euronext.com
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ETF AUM (IN MILLIONS) ON EURONEXT INDICES
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Exchange traded funds (ETFs) linked to Euronext indices remained stable at €7.5 billion in Assets Under Management (AUM) at the end
of 2018. Most ETFs had a net AUM inflow offsetting the 2018 decline of the index levels.

Other ETP and ETF highlights include:

= accelerating growth of AUM in the ETF tracking the Low Carbon 100 Europe®, with a net inflow of €281 million in 2018 bringing the total

AUM to €434 million;

= end of year record for Euronext Listed ETPs on the CAC 40° to 8,070 (up 34.2% compared to 2017);

CONTINUOUS GROWTH OF ETPs LINKED TO CAC 40 LISTED ON EURONEXT

Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 m
Nr. of Products 1,058 1,486 1,593 2,908 4,073 4,648 5016 6,014 8,070
= end of year record for ETPs on the AEX® to 2,907 (up 3.2%);

ETPs LINKED TO AEX LISTED ON EURONEXT
Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 m
Nr. of Products 579 884 823 977 1,369 2,158 1,748 2,816 2,907
1.3.6 POST TRADE an alternative option. Trades on London Recognised Investment

Euronext’s post-trade business offers or facilitates clearing,
settlement, risk management and custody services. The Group
owns 20% of EuroCCP, the cash equities CCP and 11.1% of LCH
S.A., the multi asset CCP for derivatives, cash equities, Repo and
CDS clearing. In addition Euronext owns 100% of Interbolsa, the
Portuguese national Central Securities Depository (CSD), national
Securities Settlement System (SSS) and national numbering
agency. Other pan European settlement services are provided
by Euroclear, of which the Group owns 3.53% directly and 1.53%
indirectly through its stake in Sicovam.

1.3.6.1 Post Trade - Products and Services
Clearing

Clearing of Regulated Market and Multilateral Trading Facilities
trades executed on Euronext are currently cleared by LCH S.A.
as the default central counterparty (CCP) and with EuroCCP as

Exchange and Euronext Dublin are cleared by EuroCCP.

LCH S.A.

LCH S.A. provides clearing services for the full scope of Euronext
listed cash and derivative products under two separate agreements
for Cash markets and Derivatives markets. Euronext signed in 2017
arenewed 10-year agreement for derivatives clearing with LCH S.A,,
whilst at the same time converting it's 2.3% shareholding of LCH
Group into 11.1% in LCH S.A. The agreement not only provides for a
direct investment in a leading multi-asset Eurozone based CCP but
also provides an improved value proposition for customers, including
reduced clearing fees. The continuity of service, especially with the
backdrop of Brexit, is also extremely important for customers.

Under the terms of the Derivatives Clearing Agreement, Euronext
continues to benefit from a revenue share deal with LCH S.A. at
approximately the same level of EBITDA as the previous agreement.
Euronext therefore receives clearing fee revenues based on the
number of financial and commodities derivatives trades cleared
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through LCH S.A. The Derivatives Clearing Agreement features
solid governance rights as well as pre-emption rights for Euronext,
in the case of a sale of LCH S.A. Euronext retains its LCH S.A. board
seat and gains additional representation on the Audit Committee.

EuroCCP

Euronext owns 20% of EuroCCP and completed technical connectivity
of Euronext Regulated Markets in Q1 2017. EuroCCP is the leading
CCP for pan-European cash equity markets. This deal delivers
on Euronext’'s commitment to ensure optionality and fits with the
EU wide mandate to deliver competition in clearing services, as
enshrined in MiFIR. In addition, it enables Euronext to offer user
choice in clearing for the equity markets, currently achieved through
the preferred CCP model but to be followed by a fully interoperable
service with other CCPs in due course.

Custody & Settlement

Settlement of transactions in the Portuguese market are managed
through Interbolsa while trades in all other Euronext markets are
settled through Euroclear group.

Interbolsa is the national Central Securities Depository (“CSD")
and the national Securities Settlement System for Portugal.
As national Securities Settlement System, Interbolsa provides
settlement services for regulated markets and MTFs, securities
lending transactions, OTC transactions, free-of-payment and
delivery-versus-payment transfers. It also processes corporate
actions with respect to securities registered or deposited in the
CSD as well as the calculation of corresponding financial settlement
and sending of payment instructions to the TARGET2-Securities
(T2S) platform for payments in central bank money (Euro) and to
Caixa Geral de Depésitos for payments in commercial bank money
(in respect of currencies other than Euro). Interbolsa is also the
national numbering agency in charge of the assignment of ISIN,

CFl and FISN codes according to the ISIN, CFl and FISN codification
rules in force (namely to all Portuguese-issued equities and for
debt instruments registered or deposited in Interbolsa’s systems),
nationwide disclosure of assigned ISIN, CFl and FISN codes and
intermediating between national entities, other national numbering
agencies and ANNA Service Bureau. The use of Interbolsa is
currently required by local rules and regulations.

Interbolsa is one of Euronext’s wholly owned subsidiaries, while
Euroclear is an independent entity that provide services to the
Company.

In March 2016, Interbolsa has successfully migrated to the new
pan-European settlement platform — TARGET2-Securities (T2S), as
originally scheduled, integrated in the second T2S migration wave.

In July 2018, Interbolsa obtained a CSDR license to operate according
to the new European CSD Regulation becoming one of the first CSDs
in the European Union to be re-authorised under CSDR.

1.3.6.2 Post Trade - Recent Developments

Clearing

Euronext has deployed the first major phases and features of the
Euronext RiskGuard pre-trade risk management solution. These
are currently available for Euronext’s derivatives markets, either
via APl or GUI. RiskGuard will be extended for additional advanced
features in the future.

In addition, Euronext Paris is authorized by the AMF for the provision
of trade reporting and transaction reporting (“APA/ARM") services
under MIFID Il. This service was launched into pre-production in
December 2017, providing a single interface for MiFID Il trade
publication and Transactions Reporting. It commenced liver
operation on the 3 January and already has a strong client base.

EXPERTISE NEUTRALITY
Leverage existing regulated
market infrastructure and
experience in regulatory
reporting and publication

Neutral party already
applying highest standards
for data protection

SINGLE ACCESS

Members of Euronext
regulated markets have

sa me access to regulatory
reporting and publication
as for Euronext market

COMPLEMENTARY
SERVICE

Leverage data to provide
additional MiFID Il +
compliant services (S|
quotes)

GEOGRAPHICAL
REACH

Coverage across Europe

h 4

One stop-shop, pan-European offer on multiple asset classes
(Cash, Derivatives, Commodities) for members/non-members

Euronext COB,
On-exchange/off-book

Off exchange (SI, OTC)

v

Post-trade publication (and pre-trade for Sl)

Post-trade reporting, Transaction reporting
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Custody & Settlement

TARGET2-Securities

After its smooth and successful migration to the pan-European
settlement platform (T2S) " in March 2016 (integrated in the
second migration wave), Interbolsa has been actively involved in
the 4™ and final migration waves, on February 2017 and
September 2017, respectively, as well as working to improve
operational processes and implement new software releases,
which has allowed to increase the efficiency of the day-to-day
operations with T2S.

Direct CSD Links

In order to take further advantage of the easier and more
efficient way to settle cross-border transactions using the T2S
platform, Interbolsa is working in setting up direct investor links
and relayed investor links with some of the major domestic
CSDs in Europe, which will be operational throughout 2018
and 2019.

These are the CSDs in scope:

l

clearstream
Déuteé e Bhirse Grolg
France Germany (CBF)
Netherlands
Belgium

Central Securities Depositories Regulation (CSD Regulation)

The Regulation (EU) No 909/2014 of the European Parliament and
of the Council of 23 July 2014 on improving securities settlement in
the European Union and on central securities depositories (CSDR)
is now fully in force. The main purpose of the CSDR is to harmonize
the settlement of financial instruments in Europe and to provide a
set of common organisational and conduct requirements for CSDs.

On 10 March 2017 the Regulatory Technical Standards (RTS) issued
by ESMA and EBA were published in the Official Journal. The RTS
entered into force 20 days after their publication (i.e., 30 March
2017) and Interbolsa had 6 months (until 30 September 2017) to
submit to its competent authority the authorisation process in order
to be recognised as a CSD under CSD Regulation. The authorisation
process was submitted by Interbolsa to its competent authority on
29 September 2017.

="— Monte Titoll
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By establishing the above-mentioned direct and relayed CSD
links, Euronext wishes to be able to attract foreign securities
currently held by domestic financial intermediaries via
international custodians and/or other domestic and international
Central Securities Depositories, hence enabling Interbolsa to be
their sole access point to the main European markets.

In February 2018, Interbolsa became a participant of the Central
Securities Depositories (CSDs) Euroclear France and Euroclear
Nederland, as investor-CSD, establishing links with these CSDs,
allowing its participants to hold in their securities accounts debt
instruments originally registered in these CSDs (Issuer-CSD).

Since 6 August 2018, INTERBOLSA allows its participants to hold
in their securities accounts debt instruments originally registered
at NBB-SSS (Issuer-CSD), through the link with Euroclear France.

These links allows the transfer of securities between Interbolsa’s
participants and the participants of the mentioned CSDs, in real
time, through the pan-European platform TARGET2-Securities (T2S),
as well as the corporate actions processing over the debt securities
registered in the securities accounts of Interbolsa’s participants.

INTERBOLSA

A EURONEXT COMPANY

| N
vercor ol

Italy Spain

In September 2017, Interbolsa submitted its CSDR application which
was considered complete in January 2018.The approval process
was conducted in close cooperation with the CMVM, as well as the
Banco de Portugal (the Portuguese Central Bank) and the European
Central Bank.

In July 2018, Interbolsa has been informed by the CMVM - Comissao
do Mercado de Valores Mobilidrios that, with effect from 12 July
2018, Interbolsa has been granted a license to operate according
to the new European CSD Regulation.

Interbolsa is among the very first CSDs in the EU to be re-authorised
under CSDR.

(1) T2S provides integrated and harmonised cross-border settlement of transactions in central bank money.
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Securities Lending Management System

Interbolsa has its Securities Lending Management System fully
adapted to the specificities of T2S, therefore readily available to
be used.

This functionality enables its users to: (a) diffuse information
regarding demand and offer of securities to all participants;
(b) confirm the characteristics of the lending operations between
counterparties; and (c) carry out the settlements inherent to the
opening and closing of lending operations.

Fund Management Platform

Interbolsa’s Fund Management Platform and Order Routing system is
now fully adapted to the specificities of T2S, therefore readily available
to be used by any fund management company, for investment funds.

The main objective is to leverage the use of the mentioned platform
and its order routing capabilities and enable Interbolsa to attract
investment funds from independent and bank owned Fund Managers.

Since this announcement, Euronext already integrated twelve open-
end funds and Euronext expects the number of clients and volumes
to raise in the months to come.

Pricing

After Interbolsa’s migration to T2S, Euronext’'s CSD has worked on a
new pricing. The readjustments in its price list — for both Issuers and
Financial Intermediaries — was implemented on 1 April 2017 having
in mind to reinforce the attractiveness of the Portuguese market
while also striving to balance this goal with the need to protect both
Euronext’'s competitiveness and profitability.

Commercial Intensity

Started in 2017 and throughout 2018, Interbolsa has intensified one-
to-one meetings with existing and prospective clients (Issuers, Fls
and Fund Managers), in order to ensure that (a) Euronext keeps them
abreast of recent, on-going and planned developments in Euronext’s
service portfolio, while (b) aiming to attract more debt securities,
commercial paper and equities, as well as investment funds, with
the objective of increasing the volumes of (i) assets under custody
and (ii) settlement of transactions, with a direct and positive impact
on Interbolsa revenues.

1.3.7 EURONEXT TECHNOLOGY
SOLUTIONS ” & OTHER
1.3.7.1 Euronext Technology Solutions & Other

- Products and Services

Euronext Technology Solutions & other comprises Euronext’s
commercial technology solutions and services businesses. Euronext
offers custom solutions and cost-effective managed services to
exchanges and venue operators who require complex functional
capabilities and low latency processing across multiple-asset
classes.

The technologies & other business benefits from the technology
developments made by Euronext for its own markets and, in return,

(1) Previously reported as Market Solutions.
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contributes recurring revenue that is non-cyclic and not trading
related. Operating as a technology vendor also gives Euronext an
opportunity to compare its technology against other vendors and
ensure that it maintains its position at the forefront of the industry.

The solutions and services offered use Optiq® and other applications
developed by Euronext or licensed from third-parties. Optiq® entered
production with Euronext in mid-2018 and has already been licensed
to seven other venue operators, either as a deployed solution or
under an Optig® as a Service arrangement. This rapid take-up by the
industry demonstrates the attractiveness of the reliability, flexibility
and cost of ownership benefits that Optiq® provides and reflects the
insights that Euronext, as a leading market operator itself, can apply
in the design of new trading technology.

Euronext continues to provide software support and maintenance
services for the legacy trading platforms, Euronext UTP and NSC®.
Euronext has a perpetual, royalty-free license from ICE to use,
modify and sub-license Euronext UTP and NSC® (see section 5.2
“Material contracts and related party transactions”).

At the end of 2018, two Exchanges clients remained on Euronext UTP
and both have been offered options for migrating to Optig® ahead of
termination of Euronext UTP maintenance. Support for the previous
generation trading platform, NSC®, will cease in 2019 once all clients
using NSC® have been migrated to Optiq®. This will further simplify
Euronext’s technology operation and reduce expenses.

Euronext has issued a sub-license to a third-party for the sale and
maintenance of certain legacy software modules including NSC®.
In addition to generating license revenue, such agreements enable
Euronext to increase its focus on Optig® and future extensions
thereof.

Optig® enables the technologies business to be more competitive
by offering solutions that are faster, more resilient and cheaper to
operate. It has been designed for high-volume markets and so will
meet the throughput and resilience needs of most global exchanges.
As a result, Euronext Technology Solutions priorities for the future
Optig® roadmap will include integrating new functions and asset
classes to increase the flexibility, configurability and extensibility
offered to clients.

Most technology solutions provided to clients include software
for reference data management, price calculation and market
control functions. The high level of commonality between exchange
operations around the world means that many of these solutions can
be delivered to clients with little or no client-specific customisation. In
some cases, client requirements can be met by simple configuration
changes and in others only minor software modifications are
required. Whichever approach is taken, the rights to new platform
capabilities remain with Euronext and are incorporated into the core
product for the benefit of all users (including Euronext itself). This
mutually beneficial, user-community approach means that Euronext
can maintain an industry leading platform with lower expenses than
would otherwise be the case.

Where Euronext does not offer commercial in-house software for
a function required by a client, third-party software can easily be
integrated with Optiq®. This approach is used for the MAR surveillance
service offered to MTF and Sl operators which provides monitoring
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of compliance with the Market Abuse Regulation as a remotely
delivered service. This service enables clients to outsource their
MAR monitoring operations and take advantage of the investments
in staff and processes made by Euronext for its own markets.

Optig® will facilitate the development of more such services,
specifically those performing analytic and regulatory processing of
the large volumes of trading data generated by electronic exchanges.
Demand for these applications is expected to grow as the scope and
rigour of regulatory monitoring requirements increase.

Historically, revenue from the Euronext Technology Solutions &
other business came from software license and maintenance fees.
However, Euronext’s ability to configure its technology for a wide
range of market models means that the same Optig® software can be
offered in the form of a managed service. Optig® as a Service enables
exchanges and venue operators to take advantage of fully-hosted
trading and clearing platforms without investing in data center or
network infrastructure. With banks and financial intermediaries
increasingly seeing migration to cloud and software-as-a-service
as solutions to the competing pressures of cost-reduction and
regulatory complexity, Euronext’s experience as a service provider
is receiving renewed interest. Euronext’s MiFID Il compliant MTF
and Sl services build on Euronext’s own software, processes and
infrastructure and offer clients an effective way to reduce costs
without increasing regulatory risk. At the end of 2018, Euronext had
four managed services in production for European venue operators
and a binding letter of intent for implementation of a fifth.

The technologies& other business also receives revenue for
network connectivity and server colocation under a revenue sharing
agreement with ICE. This agreement enables Euronext to benefit
from service sales to clients who connect to its markets via the ICE

1.4 Regulation
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SFTI® network or who take colocation space in the ICE data centers
that house Euronext’s trading platforms. For more information on
SFTI® and colocation (see section 5.2 “Material contracts and related
party transactions”).

By combining the software, infrastructure and technology developed
for its internal markets with the expertise of its technology staff and
market managers, Euronext is able to offer a unique technology
service to exchanges and venue operators around the world.

1.3.7.2 Euronext Technology Solutions &
Other - Recent Developments

Euronext has built a specialist team of analysts, developers and
engineers to support the commercial technology business from
its centre of excellence in Porto. The team first project was the
deliveryof a complex MiFID Il upgrade for a European MTF operator.
This major release was delivered on-time and enabled the client to
complete a smooth transition to the new regulatory regime. In 2018,
the Porto team delivered a managed MTF service again meeting the
delivery dates and budget constraints agreed with the client. They
are now engaged on projects to deliver deployed Optig® solutions
to international clients and to implement Optiq® as a Service for a
European venue operator.

In December 2018, Euronext Technology Solutions and other
adopted the name “Euronext Technology Solutions” for use in the
promotion and delivery of deployed Optig® solutions and Optigq®
managed services. This operating name change reflects the core
role of Euronext business capabilities in the value that we deliver
to technology clients and raises the profile of the Euronext brand in
the commercial technology marketplace.

1.4.1 OVERVIEW

Euronext is an organisation that provides exchange listing, trading,
post-trade and related services in Europe. The Company operates
exchanges in six European countries (Belgium, France, Ireland, the
Netherlands, Portugal and the United Kingdom). Each of the European
exchanges and/or its respective operator holds an exchange licence
granted by the relevant national exchange regulatory authority and
operates under its supervision. Each market operator is subject to
national laws and regulations and other regulatory requirements
imposed by exchange authorities, central banks and finance
ministries as appropriate.

The six national regulatory authorities coordinate their regulation
and supervision of the regulated markets operated by the Euronext
group through the “Euronext College of Regulators”, acting pursuant
to memoranda of understanding which Euronext has committed to
respect.

1.4.2 EUROPEAN REGULATION

The regulatory framework in which Euronext operates is
substantially influenced and governed by European directives and
regulations in the financial services area, many of which have been
adopted pursuant to the Financial Services Action Plan, which was
adopted by the European Union in 1999 to create a single market
for financial services. This has enabled and increased the degree of
harmonisation of the regulatory regime for financial services, public
offers, listing and trading, amongst other activities.

Markets and Trading

There are currently two key pieces of European legislation that
govern the fair and orderly operation of markets and trading: the
MiFID/MiFIR and the MAR/MAD frameworks (both defined as below).

The MIFID Il / MiFIR framework includes the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive and the Markets in Financial
Instruments Regulation and is applicable since 3 January 2018.
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The objective is to make European financial markets more
transparent and to strengthen investor protection.

The MAR/MADII framework includes the Market Abuse Regulation
(“MAR") and a Directive on criminal sanctions for market abuse
(“MAD II") and is applicable since 3 July 2016. The objective is to
guarantee the integrity of European financial markets and increase
investor confidence. The concept of market abuse typically consists
of insider dealing, unlawful disclosure of inside information, and
market manipulation.

Clearing and Settlement

EMIR

EMIR (European Market Infrastructure Regulation) is primarily
focused on the regulation of CCPs and includes the obligation for
standardised OTC derivative contracts to be cleared through a CCP.
EMIR came into effect on 16 August 2012, but most provisions only
apply after associated delegated acts and regulatory technical
standards enter into force. Delegated acts and regulatory technical
standards in respect of, inter alia, the clearing obligation became
effective on 15 March 2013.

CSDR

The Regulation, of the European Parliament and of the Council on
improving securities settlement in the European Union and on central
securities depositories (CSD) Regulation or CSDR. It sets out uniform
requirements for the settlement of financial instruments and rules
on the organisation and conduct of central securities depositories
(CSDs) in order to ensure secure, efficient and timely settlement
of transactions. The CSD Regulation impacts the functioning of
Euronext’s CSD, Interbolsa Received the license as CSD under the
CSDR regime on 12 July 2018.

In the meantime, the European Central Bank has introduced Target
2 Securities (T2S) to provide a central settlement function for the
Euro area, with other European currencies invited to join. Euronext,
through Interbolsa, participates in the TARGET2-Securities (T2S)
platform, since March 2016, bringing substantial benefits to the
European post-trading industry by providing a single pan-European
platform for securities settlement in central bank money.

Listing

The rules regarding public offerings of financial instruments and
prospectuses, as well as on-going disclosure requirements for listed
companies, are set out in the Prospectus Directive and corresponding
implementation regulation, and the Transparency Directive, as
implemented in the countries in which Euronext operates.

Companies seeking to list their securities on Euronext’s regulated
markets must prepare a listing prospectus in accordance with
the requirements of the Prospectus Directive and corresponding
implementing regulation, comply with the requirements of
Euronext Rulebook I, the harmonised rulebook for the Euronext
Market Subsidiaries, and any additional local listing requirements
of Rulebook Il and, following admission, comply with the on-going
disclosure requirements set forth by the competent authority of their
home Member State.
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The objective of the Transparency Directive for listed companies is
to reduce the gaps in the different national law. The modifications
requires disclosure of major holdings of all financial instruments
that could be used to acquire economic interest in listed companies
and has the same effect as holdings of equity. The revised Directive
will also provide for more harmonisation concerning the rules of
notification of major holdings in particular by requiring aggregation
of holdings of financial instruments with holdings of shares for the
purpose of calculation of the thresholds that trigger the notification
requirement.

Concerning the storage and access to regulated information the
Transparency Directive provides that a European electronic access
point to regulated information will be developed and operated by
ESMA.

The new Prospectus Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2017/1129)
is designed to repeal and replace the existing body of European
prospectus law.

The Regulation is intended to be of particular benefit to European
small and medium enterprises when issuing shares or debt.
Companies already listed on public markets will also benefit when
they list additional shares or issue corporate bonds.

The key changes to the prospectus regime will impact the following
items:

m monetary thresholds for publication of a prospectus;
m issuers with securities already admitted to trading;
m prospectus summary;

m minimum disclosure regime;

m fast track approval;

m publication of prospectus;

m risk factors.

The Regulation entered into force on 20 July 2017 and will mainly
apply from 21 July 2019, other than the following provisions which
will apply earlier:

m from 20 July 2017: Certain exemptions from the obligation to
publish a prospectus, including where an issuer has securities
admitted to trading on a regulated market and wishes to admit
further securities up to a limit of 20% over 12 months;

= from 21 July 2018: The exemption from the scope of the Regulation
for offers of securities to the public with a total consideration
in the EU of less than €1,000,000 (calculated over a period of
12 months);

m from 21 July 2018: The option for Member States to exempt
offers of securities to the public from the obligation to publish a
prospectus where the total consideration of each offer in the EU
is less than €8,000,000 (calculated over a period of 12 months)
and it is not subject to notification under Article 25.

Indices

Euronext as an Indices administrator has to comply with the
European Regulation (EU) 2016/ 1011 on indices used as
benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to
measure the performance of investment funds (the BMR) which is
applicable since 1 January 2018.
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The BMR introduced a common framework to ensure the accuracy
and integrity of indexes used as benchmarks in the European Union.
The BMR applies to the:

m provision of benchmarks;
m contribution of input data to a benchmark;

m use of a benchmark within the European Union.

The Operation of Regulated Markets and MTFs

MiFID II/MiFIR, MAR/MAD, ESMA standards and the Euronext
Rulebooks all provide minimum requirements for monitoring of
trading and enforcement of rules by Euronext as the operator of
regulated markets and MTFs. In particular, market operators are
required to meet, inter alia, all the requirements set out in MiFID
(and reinforced in MAR/MAD) including the obligation to ensure that
the markets they operate allow financial instruments to trade “in a
fair, orderly and efficient manner”.

To this end, Euronext has set up a framework to organise market
monitoring by which it:

= monitors trading in order to identify breaches of the rules,
disorderly trading conditions or conduct that may involve market
abuse;

m reports breaches of rules or of legal obligations relating to market
integrity to the competent authority.

Market surveillance and monitoring are implemented through a
two-step process consisting of real-time market surveillance and
post-trade (i.e., “next day”) analysis of executed trades. Euronext
ensures member compliance with its rules by conducting on-site
investigations and inspections.

Group-Wide Supervision and Regulation

The national regulators of Euronext's markets are parties to a
memorandum of understanding most recently amended and restated
in March 2018 that established a “Euronext College of Regulators”
and provides a framework to coordinate their supervision and
regulation of the business and of the markets operated by Euronext.
The Company commits itself to the memorandum of understanding,
to the extent that any obligations arising from the memorandum of
understanding apply to the Company or its subsidiaries.

These regulatory authorities have identified certain areas of common
interest and have adopted a coordinated approach to the exercise of
their respective national rules, regulations and supervisory practices
regarding listing requirements, prospectus disclosure requirements,
on-going obligations of listed companies, takeover bid rules and
disclosure of large shareholdings.

National Regulation

Euronext's market operators each hold licences for operating
regulated markets. Some market operators also operate a number
of markets that do not fall within the European Union definition of
“regulated markets” or MTFs. Each market operator is subject to
national laws and regulations pursuant to its market operator status.

Presentation of the Group

Regulation

The Netherlands

Both Euronext and Euronext Amsterdam have an exchange licence
from the Dutch authorities to operate regulated markets. This
means that they are subject to the regulation and supervision
of the Dutch Minister of Finance and the Autoriteit Financiéle
Markten (“AFM”). Since the creation of Euronext in 2000, the Dutch
regulators have taken the view that the direct parent company of
Euronext Amsterdam, as controlling shareholder, has to be seen
as co-market operator and, accordingly, also requires an exchange
licence. Pursuant to section 5:26 paragraph 1 of the Dutch Financial
Supervision Act it is prohibited in the Netherlands to operate or to
manage a regulated market without a licence granted by the Dutch
Minister of Finance.

The Dutch Minister of Finance may, at any time, amend or revoke the
licence if necessary to ensure the proper functioning of the markets
or the protection of investors. The licence may also be revoked for
non-compliance with applicable rules.

Belgium

Euronext Brussels is governed by the Belgian Law of 21 November
2017 on the market infrastructures for financial instruments and
transposing Directive 2014/65/EU. Accordingly to the Law, Euronext
Brussels is responsible for matters such as the organisation of the
markets and the admission, suspension and exclusion of members
and has been appointed by law as the “competent authority” for
listing matters within the meaning of EU Directive 2001/34/EC dated
28 May 2001. Euronext Brussels is subject to the supervision of the
Financial Services and Markets Authority (FSMA), an independent
public authority which strives to ensure the honest and equitable
treatment of financial consumers and the integrity of the financial
markets.

Portugal

As a market operator, Euronext Lisbon is governed by Portuguese
Decree of Law No. 357-C/2007 of 31 October 2007 which, along with
the Portuguese Securities Code and regulations of the Comissao
do Mercado de Valores Mobilidrios (“CMVM”), governs the regime
applicable to regulated markets and MTFs, market operators and
other companies with related activities in Portugal. The creation
of regulated market operators requires the prior authorisation in
the form of a decree-law from the Portuguese Minister of Finance,
following consultation with the CMVM.

The CMVM is an independent public authority that supervises and
regulates markets and market participants, public offerings and
collective investment undertakings. Its objectives are to ensure
investor protection and an efficient and regular functioning of
markets, monitor information, prevent risk and prevent and
suppress illegal actions. The entities subject to the supervision
of the CMVM should co-operate with the CMVM as requested. The
CMVM carries out “on-site” supervision of the entities subject to its
supervision and makes public infringements and fines imposed in
accordance with applicable law.
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Regulation

France

As a market operator, Euronext Paris, which is the market of
reference for the Euronext shares, manages the Euronext regulated
markets in France. In accordance with Article L.421-10 of the French
Monetary and Financial Code, Euronext Paris adopts rules for each
of these markets to ensure fair and orderly trading and efficient
order execution. The requirements for market access and admission
of financial instruments to trading are also covered by these rules,
which are approved by the Autorité des Marchés Financiers (“AMF")
and published on the market operator’'s website.

Euronext Paris markets are subject to the provisions of Article
L.421-4 et seq. of the French Monetary and Financial Code, which
authorises the French Minister of Economy to confer and revoke
regulated market status upon proposal of the AMF, which has to
consult with the Autorité de Contréle Prudentiel et de Résolution
(“ACPR").

United Kingdom

Euronext London has been granted recognition by the Financial
Conduct Authority (“FCA”) to operate as a United Kingdom recognised
investment exchange (“RIE"), pursuant to section 290 of the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “UK FSMA”). As such, Euronext
London has certain self-regulatory responsibilities for its markets.
In order to retain its status as an RIE, Euronext London is required
to meet various legislative and regulatory requirements and failure
to comply with these requirements could subject it to significant
penalties, including de-recognition.

The regulatory framework applicable to Euronext London is
supplemented by a series of legislative provisions regulating
the conduct of participants. Importantly, the UK FSMA contains
provisions making it an offense for any person to engage in certain
market behaviour and prohibits market abuse through the misuse
of information, the giving of false or misleading impressions or the
creation of market distortions. Breaches of those provisions give rise
to the risk of sanctions, including financial penalties.

Republic of Ireland

The Irish Stock Exchange Plc trading as Euronext Dublin (‘Euronext
Dublin’) is authorized by the Central Bank of Ireland (‘CBI') as a
market operator pursuant to Article 56 (2) of the European Union
(Markets in Financial Instruments) Regulation 2017 (S.I. 375/2017).
As a market operator, Euronext Dublin operates one regulated
market and three multi-lateral trading facilities and adopts rules
for each of these markets to ensure fair and orderly trading and
efficient order execution.

In addition, Euronext Dublin has been appointed as the competent
authority for listing by the department of Business, Enterprise and
Innovation pursuant to the European Communities (Admission
to Listing and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2007, as
amended.

The CBlis responsible for the regulation and supervision of regulated
markets and market operators authorised in Ireland. Euronext Dublin
is required to meet various legislative and regulatory requirements
and failure to comply with these requirements could subject it to
enforcement action by the CBI including significant penalties and/
or revocation of its authorisation as a market operator.
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Stichting

In connection with obtaining regulatory approval of the acquisition of
Euronext by NYSE group, Inc. in 2007, NYSE Euronext implemented
certain special arrangements which included a standby structure
involving a Dutch foundation (stichting). Following the acquisition
of NYSE Euronext by ICE and the Demerger, the Company became
a party to these arrangements, which include a Further Amended
and Restated Governance and Option Agreement (the “GOA”), to
which ICE, the stichting and Euronext are parties. The stichting has
been incorporated to mitigate the effects of any potential change
in U.S. law that could have extraterritorial effects on the regulated
markets operated by the Euronext Market Subsidiaries as a result
of a U.S. shareholder holding a controlling interest in the Company.
The board members of the stichting are independent from Euronext.
Pursuant to the GOA, while the Company has U.S. shareholders with
a controlling interest in the Company, the stichting is empowered to
take actions to mitigate the adverse effects of any potential change
in U.S. law that have certain extraterritorial effects on the regulated
markets operated by the Euronext Market Subsidiaries. If there is
no such controlling U.S. shareholder, the stichting becomes dormant
and unable to exercise such powers. If a new U.S. shareholder were
to gain control of the Company, the stichting would be automatically
revived.

Up until 20 June 2014, the stichting was active through ICE’s
shareholding. Since the IPO, ICE sold its shareholding, and there has
been no controlling American’ shareholder. At the Euronext College
of Regulators’ request, the Stichting has become dormant.

1.4.3 OWNERSHIP LIMITATIONS
AND ADDITIONAL NOTIFICATION

REQUIREMENTS

The rules set forth below apply to an acquisition of a direct or
indirect interest in Euronext's market operators. These rules are
in addition to shareholder reporting rules applicable to listed
companies generally set out above.

m Under Dutch law, a declaration of no-objection of the Dutch
Minister of Finance is required for any holding, acquisition or
increase of a Qualifying Participation (defined as direct or indirect
participation of at least 10% of the issued capital of the relevant
entity or the power to exercise at least 10% of the voting rights)
in an operator or holder of a regulated market in the Netherlands
which has been granted an Exchange License to operate such
market pursuant to section 5:26 of the Dutch Financial Supervision
Act. The Dutch Minister of Finance has delegated its powers to
grant a declaration of no-objection under section 5:32d of the
Dutch Financial Supervision Act to the AFM except in cases
where the acquisition of the Qualifying Participation involves
a fundamental change to the shareholding structure of the
relevant licensed operator or holder of a regulated market in
the Netherlands. Euronext N.V. controls Euronext Amsterdam,
which is the licensed holder and operator of a regulated market
in the Netherlands, and has obtained a declaration of no-objection
under section 5:32d referred to above. Therefore, any acquisition
or holding increase of a direct or indirect interest in the Company
that results in an indirect Qualifying Participation in Euronext
Amsterdam, will trigger the requirement to obtain a declaration
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of no-objection of the AFM or, in case of a fundamental change in
the shareholding structure, the Dutch Minister of Finance. Such
declaration should be granted unless such holding, the acquisition
or increase: (1) could or would lead to a formal or actual control
structure that is lacking in transparency and would therefore
constitute an impediment to the adequate supervision of the
compliance by the market operator with the rules applicable to
the operator of a regulated market; (2) could or would lead to
an influence on the regulated market operator or effect on the
exploited or managed regulated market that forms a threat to
the interests which the Dutch Financial Supervision Act seeks to
protect; or (3) could jeopardise the healthy and prudent operation
of the regulated market concerned. Non-compliance with the
requirement to obtain a declaration of no-objection is an economic
offense and may lead to criminal prosecuti